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Anthony J. Picente Jr. 
County Executive 

Shawna M. Papale  
Secretary/ Treasurer/ 

Executive Director 

Timothy Fitzgerald 
Assistant Secretary 584 Phoenix Drive 

Rome, New York 13441-4105 
(315) 338-0393, fax (315) 338-5694

  

Stephen R. Zogby 
Chairman 

David C. Grow 
Vice Chairman 

Franca Armstrong 
James J. Genovese, II 

Aricca R. Lewis 
Kristen H. Martin 

Tim R. Reed 

To: 
From: 
Date: 
RE: 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Board of Directors 
Shawna M. Papale 
July 21, 2025 
OCIDA Meeting Agenda 

The Oneida County Industrial Development Agency shall meet at 8:00 AM Friday, July 25, 2025. 
Members of the public may listen to the Agency meeting by calling +1-408-418-9388, Access code: 
2866 426 5846 or attend in person. The Minutes of the Agency meeting will be transcribed and 
posted on the OCIDA website. 

1. Executive Session

2. Approve minutes – June 20, 2025

3. Financial Review
4. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC Facility. The City of

Rome Planning Board acted as lead agency for the environmental review and the Agency wishes to
concur with the findings and determination of the lead agency.

5. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC Facility,
granting preliminary approval for financial assistance in the form of exemptions from mortgage
recording taxes (valued at $42,945.50) and reduction of real property taxes for a period of 25 years
during which time the Company will pay PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 per MW-AC adding a 2%
annual escalator (valued at approximately $2,481,351.00), which is consistent with the Agency’s
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (Community Solar Policy) and authorizing the Agency to conduct a
public hearing.

6. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC Facility. The Town
of Kirkland Planning Board acted as lead agency for the environmental review and the Agency wishes
to concur with the findings and determination of the lead agency.

7. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC Facility,
granting preliminary approval for financial assistance in the form of exemptions from sales taxes
(valued at $337,750.00), exemptions from mortgage recording taxes (valued at $50,062.50) and
reduction of real property taxes for a period of 10 years (valued at approximately $248,722.00), which
is consistent with Tier 1 benefits contained in the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (Housing
Policy), making a finding that the project will promote employment opportunities and prevent
economic deterioration, and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing.

mailto:info@mvedge.org
http://www.mvedge.org/
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8. Consider a resolution relating to the Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation 

(Complex 4) Facility, approving the release of a 0.86 acre parcel of land from the Lease Agreement for 
future conveyance, and authorizing the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel 
review. 

 
9. Annual project review 

 
Old Business 
 
Next meeting date: Friday, September 5, 2025 at 8:00 AM at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY. 
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 DRAFT Minutes of the Meeting of the  
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

June 20, 2025 
584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY /Webex Video/Teleconference 

 

Members Present: Steve Zogby, David Grow, Kristen Martin, Tim Reed, Aricca Lewis, James Genovese, and Franca 
Armstrong. 
EDGE Staff Present: Shawna Papale, Tim Fitzgerald, Marc Barraco, Mark Kaucher, Maureen Carney, and Rachel Hadden. 
Others Present Virtual: Mark Levitt and Jenna Peppinelli, Levitt & Gordon; Kevin McAuliffe and Heather Lamendola, 
Barclay Damon; Laura Ruberto, Bond, Schoeneck & King; Joseph Gehm, 126 Business Park Holdings LLC.  
 

S. Zogby called the meeting to order at 8:03 AM.  
 

Minutes – May 23, 2025 
S. Zogby presented the draft May 23, 2025 meeting minutes for review. K. Martin moved to approve the May 23, 2025 
meeting minutes as presented. A. Lewis seconded the motion, which carried 5-0. 
 

T. Reed and J. Genovese arrived after the minutes were voted on. 
 

Financial Review 
M. Carney presented the May interim financial statements. Cash has decreased by about $54K since this time last year. 
This is due mostly to the fact that the Agency has only closed on two projects as of the end of May. A third project closed 
in June, which isn’t reflected in the statement. She is working with bond counsel to clear up the list of incomplete projects, 
for which the Agency has received an application/commitment fee, and to appropriately allocate those funds. No 
significant deviation from the Agency’s annual budget. With no questions or comments, the Agency received and accepted 
the interim financials as presented, subject to audit. 
 

S. Zogby notified the members that items #4 and #5, relating to the NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC project, has been 
pulled from the agenda.  
 

Chobani LLC – Final Authorizing Resolution 
S. Zogby introduced a final authorizing resolution relating to the Chobani, LLC Facility, approving financial 
assistance in the form of exemptions from sales tax (valued at $51,625,000) and reduction in real property tax (valued 
at $385,754,962) that provides the Company will make PILOT Payments (a) during the construction period: fixed 
annual payments of $90,000.00; and (b) after the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy: fixed annual payments of 
$2,000,000 for forty (40) years, with an annual escalator of 1.5% added during years 11 – 40, with PILOT Payments 
to be allocated to the tax jurisdictions in accordance with an Agreement Allocating PILOT Payments, which financial 
assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, and authorizing the form and execution 
of related documents, subject to counsel approval. The Agency conducted a public hearing on June 18, 2025. D. Grow 
made a motion to approve the Chobani LLC final authorizing resolution. F. Armstrong seconded to approve the 
resolution, which carried 7-0. 
 

126 Business Park Holdings LLC – Final Authorizing Resolution  
S. Zogby introduced final authorizing resolution relating to the 126 Business Park Holdings LLC Facility, approving 
financial assistance in the form of exemptions from sales tax (valued at $13,125), exemptions from mortgage recording 
tax (valued at $34,125) and reduction in real property tax (valued at $635,387) for a period of ten years, which financial 
assistance is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, and authorizing the form and execution 
of related documents, subject to counsel approval. The Agency conducted a public hearing on June 19, 2025. T. Reed 
motioned to approve the final authorizing resolution, as presented. A. Lewis seconded the motion, which carried 7-0.  
 

Griffiss Local Development Corporation (Building 240 Facility) – Final Authorizing Resolution 
S. Zogby introduced a final authorizing resolution relating to the Griffiss Local Development Corporation (Building 240 
Facility) approving financial assistance (valued at $0) in the form of extending the existing PILOT Agreement for an 
additional ten years with PILOT Payments to continue at the current full exemption, which financial assistance is a 
deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, and authorizing the form and execution of related documents, 
subject to counsel approval. The Agency conducted a public hearing on May 29, 2025. D. Grow made a motion to approve 
the final authorizing resolution, as presented, K. Martin seconded the motion, which carried 7-0.  
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Griffiss Local Development Corporation (Building 796/798 Facility) – Final Authorizing Resolution 
S. Zogby introduced a final authorizing resolution relating to the Griffiss Local Development Corporation (Building 796/798 
Facility) approving financial assistance (valued at $257,759) in the form of extending the existing PILOT Agreement for an 
additional ten years with PILOT Payments to continue at the current level (75% of taxes) relating to for-profit tenants and 
a full exemption to continue relating to not-for-profit tenants including GLDC, which financial assistance is a deviation 
from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, and authorizing the form and execution of related documents, subject 
to counsel approval. The Agency conducted a public hearing on May 29, 2025. F. Armstrong made a motion to approve 
the final authorizing resolution, as presented, J. Genovese seconded the motion, which carried 7-0.  
 

Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation (International Wire Facility) – Final Authorizing Resolution 
S. Zogby introduced a final authorizing resolution relating to the Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation 
(International Wire Facility) approving financial assistance in the form of extending the existing PILOT Agreement for an 
additional five years with PILOT Payments to (a) be converted to fixed payments equal to the current PILOT Payment plus 
an annual escalator if the Facility is occupied by a for-profit tenant (value estimated at $20,201) and (b) to be fully exempt 
if the Facility is vacant and occupied by the Company (maximum value estimated at $249,425), which financial assistance 
is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, and authorizing the form and execution of related 
documents, subject to counsel approval. The Agency conducted a public hearing on May 29, 2025. D. Grow made a motion 
to approve the final authorizing resolution, as presented. K. Martin seconded the motion. S. Papale gave a brief update 
on the building’s status. The current tenant is still in the building, and is expected to stay at least through the end of the 
year. The City of Rome was awarded a RESTORE NY grant in the amount of $3.5 million, which will help stabilize the 
building and make it attractive for future industrial use. With no further discussion, the motion carried 7-0.  
 
Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation (Complex 4 Facility) – Final Authorizing Resolution 
S. Zogby introduced a final authorizing resolution relating to the Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation 
(Complex 4 Facility) approving financial assistance (valued at $72,821) in the form of extending the existing PILOT 
Agreement for an additional five years during which time the property will remain fully exempt from taxes, which financial 
assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, and authorizing the form and execution of 
related documents, subject to counsel approval. The Agency conducted a public hearing on May 29, 2025. T. Reed made 
a motion to approve the final authorizing resolution, as presented, A. Lewis seconded the motion, which carried 7-0.  
 
Old Business 
S. Zogby asked Ms. Papale for a brief update regarding the recent news about Semikron-Danfoss and Wolfspeed. She first 
clarified that Semikron-Danfoss has announced that it is “winding down” operations at its Marcy facility over the 
remainder of the year. This is an important differentiation from “closing” or “vacating,” which they have not indicated at 
this point. She reminded the members that the company has a very favorable lease at the Quad-C facility, and that it may 
be advantageous to retain that space but reevaluate how it is used. It is possible that the company would bring different 
business divisions to the Marcy facility. S. Zogby recommended that staff make this clarification with local media. S. Papale 
then shared an update on Wolfspeed. Although the company may pursue bankruptcy protection in order to reorganize, 
the company has not, and does not, intend to lay anyone off. The production yield at its Marcy Fab is very good, and they 
have no plans to cease or reduce operations here. K. Martin asked about the respective employment levels and markets 
served of these two employers. Semikron-Danfoss currently has about 160 employees and serves mainly the electric 
vehicle market at its Marcy operation. Wolfspeed has about 500 employees at its Marcy Fab, and serves primarily the 
electric vehicle market, but is also involved in the areas of artificial intelligence and energy. 
 

A discussion then ensued on a variety of topics, including level of interest for solar energy development in Oneida County, 
the preservation of quality farmland within the county, and the need for skilled trades, especially welders, in light of the 
recently announced development projects across the region.  
 

Adjournment 
With no further business, S. Zogby asked for a motion to adjourn. Upon a motion by J. Genovese, which was seconded by 
A. Lewis, the meeting adjourned at 8:48 AM. 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
Tim Fitzgerald 



Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
May 31, 2025 
 
Balance Sheet:  

1. The balance in cash & cash equivalents and investments is approximately $747K; of this balance $390K is in short-
term CD’s and $357K is in the operating account, and in interest bearing money market accounts; the primary reason 
for the overall decrease is due to increase in investments of $18K, and the decrease total assets of $119K 

2. Last year at this time the agency had deposits held for the Indium PILOTs, we are currently holding $591 from the 
Wolfspeed PILOT due to an error in the tax rate used. The credit has been applied to Wolfspeed’s Q3 invoice at which 
point we will disburse the amounts owed and the deposit held will clear. 

3. The $1,000 commitment fees collected from the following for projects that have not closed as of June 30th: 
1. National Building & Restoration Corporation (Received May 2024) -TBD 
2. Pennrose LLC/ Copper Village (received September 2024)- TBD 
3. Assured Information Security, Inc. (received October 2024)- TBD 
4. Chobani (received April 2025)- TBD 
5. NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC (received June 2025) - TBD 

4. Fund balance decreased by 26% over the last 12 months 
 
Budget Comparison Report (Income Statement): 
 

1.  

 
 
Stark Truss Project closed 06/17/25, we received the application and commitment fee from NY Rome Old 
Oneida Solar, project closing TBD 
 

2. Total expenses are under budget primarily because the special economic development contingency has not yet been 
expended 
 

Other Significant Items to Note: 
 

1. Per the PILOT terms, Wolfspeed is billed quarterly each year; the Q1 payment was billed February 15 and was 
disbursed to the jurisdictions and EDGE in accordance with the PILOT Allocation agreement in March; the Q2 
payment was billed in June and has been received; the disbursement to the jurisdictions took place June 19th. 

2. All PILOTs administered through Agency with payments due on July 1 were billed on June 1; as payments are received 
and each was distributed prior to June 30th. 

 



Current Year Prior Year

357,457 493,737 1
Investments 389,714 371,472 1

2,672 2,081 2
PILOT Holdings (2,672) (2,081) 2

2,520 3,270 
2,819 3,755 

752,509 872,234 

6,679 6,679 
(6,679) (6,679)

0 0 

752,509 872,234 

1,929 1,855 
4,000 3,876 
5,000 6,000 3

10,929 11,731 

10,929 11,731 

341,581 460,502 4
400,000 400,000 

741,581 860,502 

752,509 872,234 

Accounts Payable 

Total Assets

Liabilities

Restricted Cash - PILOT Holdings

A/D-Furniture/Fixt/Eqpt 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
Balance Sheet

Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Fund Balance
Fund Balance-Board Restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue

Current Liabilities

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Fixed Assets

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Prepaid Expenses

Furniture/Fixture/Eqpt

Current Assets

Liabilities & Net Assets

Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Total Fixed Assets



Current Period
Actual

Current Period
Budget

Year-to-Date
Actual

Year-to-Date
Budget

06/30/2024 YTD 
Actual

06/30/2023 YTD 
Actual

Interest Income 2,503 1,167 11,052 7,000 11,369 986 
Lease Payments 750 5,208 62,000 31,250 58,500 58,250 
PILOT Application / Admin Fees 26,373 24,167 52,877 1 145,000 202,495 45,498 

29,626 30,542 125,929 183,250 272,364 104,734 

Business Expense 40 583 527 3,500 1,324 318 
Contracted Service-Accounting 667 667 4,000 4,000 3,876 3,125 
Contracted Services - Legal 850 850 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,100 
Contracted Services- Other 355 542 2,131 3,250 2,131 846 
Marketing- Contracted Services 0 792 1,002 4,750 1,952 4,330 
Dues & Subscriptions 0 167 1,500 1,000 1,250 0 
Insurance - General 368 375 2,210 2,250 2,219 1,520 
Special ED Projects Contingency 0 2083 0 2 12,500 12,500 12,500 
Seminars & Conferences 0 208 2,061 1,250 125 0 
Service Fees 24,244 24244 145,463 145,463 142,610 138,200 

26,524 30,510 163,994 183,062 173,087 165,939 

3,103 31 (38,065) 188 99,277 (61,205)

Total Revenue

Expenses

Total Expenses

Excess or (Deficiency) of 
Revenue Over Expenses

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
Budget Comparison Report

Current Period: 6/1/2025 - 6/30/2025
Budget Period: 1/1/2025 - 12/31/2025

With Comparative Periods Ending 6/30/2024 and 6/30/2023

Revenue



Cash Flows From ( Used by) Operating Activities
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (118,921)$      
Adjustments for Noncash Transactions
Depreciation and Amortization 0
(Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts Receivable 750
Accounts Receivable-PILOTs billed 0
Investments (18,242)
Prepaid Expenses 936
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 197
Deferred Revenue (1,000)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (136,280)

Cash Flows From (Used By) Investing Activities
Capital Expenditures 0

Net Cash From (Used by) Investing Activities 0

Cash Flows From (Used By) Financing Activities
Repayments of Long Term Debt 0
Proceeds from  Long Term Debt 0

Net Cash Flows (Used by) Financing Activities 0

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (136,280)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 493,737

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period 357,457$        

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period Ending June 30, 2025
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Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting 

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor.  Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.   

Complete Part 1 based on information currently available.  If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist, 
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to
update or fully develop that information.   

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B.  In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow.  If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any 
additional information.  Section G requires the name and signature of the project sponsor to verify that the information 
contained in Part 1is accurate and complete.

A. Project and Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:  

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map): 

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need): 

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone:  

E-Mail:

Address:

City/PO: State: Zip Code: 

Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): Telephone: 

E-Mail:

Address:

City/PO: State: Zip Code:

Property Owner  (if not same as sponsor): Telephone: 
E-Mail:

Address:

City/PO: State: Zip Code:

NY Rome Old Oneida Road Solar Farm

5792 Old Oneida Rd, Rome, NY 13440

The proposed project involves the construction of a ground-mounted solar farm and associated electrical appurtenances. The solar photovoltaic (PV)
system is proposed for installation on site and will generate up to 5.96 MWp-DC/4.2 MW-AC. The interconnection wiring will be pole mounted, overhead
wiring.

Emeren Group LTD (attn: Bradley Davis)
647-624-4566

bradley.davis@emeren.com

100 First Stamford Plan, Suite 302

Stamford CT 06902

Bryan A. Bayer, PWS, CE
315-455-2000

bbayer@cscos.com

499 Col. Eileen Collins Boulevard

Syracuse NY 13212

James D. Elliott (Tax Parcel No.: 272.000-0002-036 and 257.004-0001-031)

5792 Old Oneida Road

Rome NY 13440
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B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals  Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial
assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) 
Required 

Application Date 
(Actual or projected) 

a. City Town , Yes  No
or Village Board of Trustees

b. City, Town or Village  Yes  No 
Planning Board or Commission

c. City  Town or  Yes  No 
Village Zoning Board of Appeals

d. Other local agencies  Yes  No 

e. County agencies  Yes  No 

f. Regional agencies  Yes  No 

g. State agencies  Yes  No 

h. Federal agencies  Yes  No 

i. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? Yes  No 

ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program?  Yes  No 
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area?  Yes  No 

C. Planning and Zoning

C.1. Planning and zoning actions.
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or  regulation be the  Yes No
 only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?  

If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.
If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1

C.2. Adopted land use plans.

a. Do any municipally- adopted  (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site  Yes  No 
where the proposed action would be located?

If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action  Yes  No 
would be located? 
b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway  Yes  No 

Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)

If Yes, identify the plan(s):   
     _______________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan,    Yes  No
or an adopted municipal farmland  protection plan?

If Yes, identify the plan(s): 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

✔ City Building Permit TBD

✔

✔ Special Use Permit January 5, 2024

✔

✔ Oneida County 239M Review, Oneida County
PILOT

TBD

✔

✔ NYSERDA Funding, NYSDEC SPDES
Construction, NYSDEC JD, SHPO

TBD

✔ USACE Jurisdictional Determination TBD

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

NYS Heritage Areas:Mohawk Valley Heritage Corridor

✔

City of Rome Comprehensive Plan; Urban Agricultural Assessment for Rome, NY; Oneida County Agricultural and Farmland Protection Plan
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C.3.  Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance.  Yes  No
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit?  Yes  No 

c. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action?  Yes  No  
If Yes,

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?   ___________________________________________________________________

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located?    ________________________________________________________________

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
    _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

c. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

d. What parks serve the project site?
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)?
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? _____________  acres 
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? _____________  acres 
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? _____________  acres 

c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use?  Yes  No 
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,

square feet)?    % ____________________  Units: ____________________
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision?  Yes  No 
If Yes,

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed?  Yes  No 
iii. Number of  lots proposed?   ________
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes?  Minimum  __________  Maximum __________

 Yes  No 
 _____  months 

 _____ 
 _____  month  _____ year 

Will proposed action be constructed in multiple phases?
If No, anticipated period of construction:
If Yes:

Total number of phases anticipated
Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition)
Anticipated completion date of final phase  _____  month  _____year 
Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may
determine timing or duration of future phases: _______________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

179.71 acres equals total acreage of parcel
no. 272.000-0002-036, 257.004-0001-031,
272.000-1-34, and 257.004-0001-003.001
owned by James D. Elliot (site and
immediately adjacent to site)

✔

OS Open Space

✔

✔

Rome City School District

City of Rome Police Department, Oneida County Sheriff's Office, New York State Police

City of Rome Fire Department, Rome Memorial Hospital Emergency Services, Amcare Ambulance Service

Rome Wildlife Management Area, Bellamy Harbor Park, Riverside Park, Haselton Park, Franklyn Field, Vogel Park, Wiggins Park

144.1
17.6

179.71

✔

✔

✔
8

Commercial



Page 4 of 13 

f. Does the project include new residential uses?  Yes No  
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

  One Family      Two Family         Three Family        Multiple Family (four or more)

Initial Phase    ___________      ___________    ____________      ________________________ 
At completion 
   of all phases       ___________      ___________    ____________   ________________________  

g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)?  Yes  No   
If Yes,

i. Total number of structures ___________
ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: ________height; ________width;  and  _______ length

iii. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled:  ______________________ square feet

h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any    Yes  No 
liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?

If Yes,  
i. Purpose of the impoundment:  ________________________________________________________________________________

ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water:                       Ground water   Surface water streams   Other specify:
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment.    Volume: ____________ million gallons; surface area: ____________  acres 
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure:       ________ height; _______ length

vi. Construction method/materials  for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

D.2.  Project Operations
a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both?  Yes  No

(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)

If Yes:
i .What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?  _______________________________________________________________ 

ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
Volume (specify tons or cubic yards): ____________________________________________
Over what duration of time? ____________________________________________________

iii. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials?  Yes  No
If yes, describe. ___________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated?  _____________________________________acres
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? _______________________________ acres

vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? __________________________ feet
viii. Will the excavation require blasting?  Yes  No 
ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan: _____________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment  Yes  No 
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes: 
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description):  ______________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Solar racks

✔

✔

191
8.75 15.93 98.4

N/A

✔

✔

✔

Three wetlands, one stream, and two ditches were identified by C&S staff within the vicinity of the project. No impacts to wetland or
stream habitats are anticipated as a result of the proposed project. Non-jurisdictional portions of the ditches will be impacted by the
proposed project.
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ii.

iii.

Describe how the  proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Will proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? Yes No
If Yes, describe: __________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Will proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

a  of vegetation proposed to be removed  ___________________________________________________________
 acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion ________________________________________

purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):  ____________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

proposed method of plant removal: ________________________________________________________________________
if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s): _________________________________________________

v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance: _________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day:      __________________________ gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply?  Yes  No 

If Yes:
Name of district or service area:   _________________________________________________________________________
Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal?  Yes  No 
Is the project site in the existing district?  Yes  No 
Is expansion of the district needed?  Yes  No 
Do existing lines serve the project site?  Yes  No  

iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project: ________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Source(s) of supply for the district: ________________________________________________________________________

iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site?  Yes  No 
If, Yes: 

Applicant/sponsor for new district: ________________________________________________________________________
Date application submitted or anticipated: __________________________________________________________________
Proposed source(s) of supply for new district: _______________________________________________________________

v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project: ___________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), maximum pumping capacity: _______ gallons/minute.

d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes?  Yes  No 
If Yes: 

i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day:  _______________  gallons/day
ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and

approximate volumes or proportions of each):   __________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities?  Yes  No
If Yes:

Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used: _____________________________________________________________
Name of district:  ______________________________________________________________________________________
Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project?  Yes  No 

 Is the project site in the existing district?  Yes  No 
 Is expansion of the district needed?  Yes  No 

Placement of structures and associated grading activities are proposed within non-jurisdictional ditch features on site. Approximately
0.008 acre of impacts to non-jurisdictional ditches are anticipated.

✔

✔

✔

✔
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 Yes  No Do existing sewer lines serve the project site?
Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project: ____________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

Applicant/sponsor for new district: ____________________________________________________________________
Date application submitted or anticipated: _______________________________________________________________
What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge? __________________________________________________

v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed
receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste: _______________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________    

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point  Yes  No 
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?

If Yes:
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?

_____ Square feet or  _____ acres (impervious surface) 
_____  Square feet or  _____ acres (parcel size) 

ii. Describe types of new point sources.  __________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Where will the stormwater runoff  be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,
groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

If to surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:  ________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties?  Yes  No 

iv. Does proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater?  Yes  No
f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel  Yes  No 

combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?
If Yes, identify: 

i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit,  Yes  No 
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes:
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area?  (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet  Yes  No 

ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:

___________Tons/year ( ) of Carbon Dioxide (CO2)
___________Tons/year ( ) of Nitrous Oxide (N2 )
___________Tons/year ( ) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
___________Tons/year ( ) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF6)
___________Tons/year ( ) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflo rocarbons (H )
___________Tons/year ( ) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

✔

0.97
144.1

None

Stormwater will be directed to on-site surface water and drainage ways.

✔
✔

✔

Construction vehicles during the construction period only (Monday through Friday)

Not applicable

Not applicable

✔
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h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants,  Yes  No 
landfills, composting facilities)?

If Yes:
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric): ________________________________________________________________

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring): ________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as  Yes  No
quarry or landfill operations?

If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):   
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

j. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial  Yes  No 
new demand for transportation facilities or services?

If Yes:
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply):  Morning  Evening Weekend

 Randomly between hours of __________  to  ________.
ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day

v.

Parking spaces: Existing _____________ Proposed ___________ Net increase/decrease _____________

 Yes  No vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within ½ mile of the proposed site?
vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric  Yes  No 

 or other alternative fueled vehicles? 
viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing  Yes  No

pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand  Yes  No 
for energy?

If Yes:
i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action: ____________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or

other):
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade  to an existing substation?  Yes  No 

l. Hours of operation.  Answer all items which apply.
i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:

Monday - Friday: _________________________ Monday - Friday: ____________________________
Saturday: ________________________________ Saturday: ___________________________________
Sunday: _________________________________ Sunday: ____________________________________
Holidays: ________________________________ Holidays: ___________________________________

✔

✔

✔

✔

7 AM - 5 PM
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

24 hours unmanned
24 hours unmanned
24 hours unmanned
24 hours unmanned
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m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction,  Yes  No 
operation, or both?

If yes:   
i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen?  Yes  No 
 Describe: _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

n. W thill prope os actioed havn e outd lighoor ting?  Yes  No  
 If yes: 
i. Describe source(s), location(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen?  Yes  No
Describe: _________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

o. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day?  Yes  No
If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:     ______________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

p.  Yes  No Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum ( over 1,100 gallons)
or chemical products ?

If Yes: 
Product(s) to be stored ______________________________________________________________________________________
Volume(s) ______ per unit time ___________ (e.g., month, year)
Generally  describe proposed storage facilities ________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides,   Yes   No 
insecticides) during construction or operation?

If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices?   Yes   No 
r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal   Yes   No

of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?
If Yes: 

i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
Construction:  ____________________  tons per ________________ (unit of time)
Operation :      ____________________  tons per ________________ (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
Construction:  ________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Operation:  __________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
Construction:  ________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Operation:  __________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

✔

Ambient noise levels will only be exceeded during the construction period. The solar array equipment will generate a minor amount of noise during
operation.

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

0.5
0

month
month

Minor trash during construction from packaging materials

None

Typical rolloff dumpster

None
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s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility?   Yes    No  
If Yes:

i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or
other disposal activities): ___________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:
________ Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
________ Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment

iii. If landfill, anticipated site life: ________________________________ years

t. Will proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous  Yes  No 
waste?

If Yes: 
i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility: ___________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents: ___________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated  _____ tons/month
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents: ____________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility?  Yes  No  
If Yes: provide name and location of facility: _______________________________________________________________________ 

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:    

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site
a. Existing land uses.

i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
  Urban        Industrial        Commercial        Residential (suburban)        Rural (non-farm) 
  Forest        Agriculture     Aquatic        Other (specify): ____________________________________ 
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.
Land use or  
Covertype 

Current 
Acreage 

Acreage After 
Project Completion 

Change 
(Acres +/-) 

Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces
Forested
Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non-
agricultural, including abandoned agricultural)
Agricultural
(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.) 
Surface water features
(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.) 
Wetlands (freshwater or tidal)
Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill)

Other
Describe: _______________________________ 
________________________________________ 

✔

✔

✔
✔ ✔

The majority of the site contains agricultural land (row crops) with residential development in the northern portion of the site, ditch features in the central
portion of the site, a stream along the southern boundary of the site, and wetlands in the northwestern and southeastern portions of the site.

0 0.97 +0.97

0 0 0

0.55 9.95 +9.4

17.05 0.00 -17.05

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

Solar Array (Racking Footprint) 0 6.68 +6.68
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c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation?  Yes  No 
i. If Yes: explain:  __________________________________________________________________________________________

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed  Yes  No 
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,  
i. Identify Facilities:

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam?  Yes  No 
If Yes: 

i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
Dam height:    _________________________________  feet 
Dam length:    _________________________________  feet 
Surface area:    _________________________________  acres 
Volume impounded:  _______________________________ gallons OR acre-feet

ii. Dam=s existing hazard classification:  _________________________________________________________________________
iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility,  Yes  No 
or does the project site adjoin  property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?

If Yes:
i. Has the facility been formally closed?  Yes   No 

If yes, cite sources/documentation: _______________________________________________________________________
ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities: __________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin  Yes  No  
property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes:
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

h. Potential contamination history.  Has there been a reported spill at the proposed  project site, or have any  Yes   No  
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?

If Yes: 
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site  Yes  No 

Remediation database?  Check all that apply:
  Yes – Spills Incidents database       Provide DEC ID number(s): ________________________________ 
  Yes – Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s): ________________________________ 
  Neither database 

ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:_______________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database?  Yes  No 
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):  ______________________________________________________________________________ 
iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses?  Yes  No  
If yes, DEC site ID number: ____________________________________________________________________________
Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):    ____________________________________
Describe any use limitations: ___________________________________________________________________________
Describe any engineering controls: _______________________________________________________________________
Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place?  Yes  No 
Explain: ____________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

E.2.  Natural Resources On or Near Project Site
a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site?  ________________ feet

b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site?  Yes  No 
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings?  __________________%

c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site:  ___________________________  __________% 
 ___________________________  __________% 
____________________________  __________% 

d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site?  Average:  _________ feet

e. Drainage status of project site soils:   Well Drained: _____% of ite
  Moderately Well Drained: _____% of site 
  Poorly Drained _____% of ite

f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes:   0-10%: _____% of site  
  10-15%: _____% of site 
  15% or greater: _____% of site 

g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site?  Yes  No 
 If Yes, describe: _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

h. Surface water features.
i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers,  Yes  No 

ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site?  Yes  No 

If Yes to either i or ii, continue.  If No, skip to E.2.i.
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal,  Yes  No 

state or local agency?
iv. For each identified wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information

Streams: Name ____________________________________________ Classification _______________________ 
Lakes or Ponds: Name ____________________________________________ Classification _______________________
Wetlands: Name ____________________________________________ Approximate Size ___________________ 
Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC) _____________________________

v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS water quality-impaired  Yes  No 
waterbodies?

If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired: _____________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway?  Yes  No 

j. Is the project site in the 100 year Floodplain?  Yes  No 

k. Is the project site in the 500 year Floodplain?  Yes  No 

l. Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. Name of aquifer:  _________________________________________________________________________________________

>6.5

✔

136A-Kendaia silt loam, 0-3% slope 67.5

790B-Conesus silt loam, 3-8% slope 32.5

0.5-2

✔ 32.5
✔ 67.5

✔ 100.0

✔

✔

✔

✔

Stream C (delineated by C&S)

NYS Wetland NYS Wetland (in a...
RO-15

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

Principal Aquifer
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m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:  ______________________________ 
______________________________ _______________________________ ______________________________ 
______________________________ _______________________________ ______________________________ 

n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation): _____________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Source(s) of description  or evaluation: ________________________________________________________________________
iii. Extent of community/habitat:

Currently:    ______________________  acres 
Following completion of project as proposed:   _____________________   acres
Gain or loss (indicate + or -):  ______________________ acres 

o. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as    Yes  No 
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of  Yes  No
special concern?

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing?  Yes  No  
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use: ___________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

E.3.  Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site
a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to  Yes  No 

Agriculture and  Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?
If Yes,  provide county plus district name/number:  _________________________________________________________________  

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present?  Yes  No 
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?  ___________________________________________________________________________

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):  _________________________________________________________________________________

c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National  Yes  No 
Natural Landmark?

If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark:     Biological Community            Geological Feature
ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent: ___________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
  ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. CEA name: _____________________________________________________________________________________________
ii. Basis for designation: _____________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Designating agency and date:  ______________________________________________________________________________

Grasshopper sparrow Gray squirrel Groundhog

Bobolink Eastern cottontail
Mourning dove White-tail deer

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
Prime farmland: 5.7 acres; Prime farmland if drained: 11.9 acres

USDA NRCS Web Soil Survey

✔

✔



Page 13 of 13 

e. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district  Yes  No
which is listed on of Historic P

 of Historic Places?
If Yes:

i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource:    Archaeological Site    Historic Building or District     
ii. Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

f. Is the project site, or any portion of  it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for  Yes  No 
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):  _______________________________________________________________________________
ii. Basis for identification:   ___________________________________________________________________________________

h.  Yes  No the project site any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local
scenic or aesthetic resource?

If Yes:
i. Identify resource: _________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.):  ___________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Distance between project and resource: _____________________ miles.
i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers  Yes  No 

Program 6 NYCRR 666?
If Yes:

i. Identify the name of the river and its designation: ________________________________________________________________
ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 666?  Yes  No 

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them. 

G. Verification
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant/Sponsor Name ___________________________________ Date_______________________________________ 

Signature________________________________________________ Title_______________________________________ 

✔

✔

✔

✔

Rome Wildlife Management Area, Bellamy Harbor Park, Riverside Park, Haselton Park, Franklyn Field, Vogel Park, Wiggins Par

Wildlife Management Area, Public Park
<5

✔

Bryan A. Bayer, C&S Engineers, Inc. January 5, 2024

PRINT FORM

Department Manager, Planning & Compliance



EEAF Mapper Summary Report Friday, October 6, 2023 11:15 AM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist 
project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental 
assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked in the EAF are 
answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF 
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks.  Although 
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data available to 
DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order 
to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is not a 
substitute for agency determinations.

B.i.i [Coastal or Waterfront Area] No

B.i.ii [Local Waterfront Revitalization Area] No

C.2.b. [Special Planning District] Yes - Digital mapping data are not available for all Special Planning Districts. 
Refer to EAF Workbook.

C.2.b. [Special Planning District - Name] NYS Heritage Areas:Mohawk Valley Heritage Corridor

E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - 
Potential Contamination History]

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF 
Workbook.

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - 
Listed]

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF 
Workbook.

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - 
Environmental Site Remediation Database]

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF 
Workbook.

E.1.h.iii [Within 2,000' of  DEC Remediation 
Site]

No

E.2.g [Unique Geologic Features] No

E.2.h.i [Surface Water Features] Yes

E.2.h.ii  [Surface Water Features] Yes

E.2.h.iii [Surface Water Features] Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and 
waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Wetlands 
Name]

NYS Wetland

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Wetlands 
Size]

NYS Wetland (in acres):85.8

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - DEC 
Wetlands Number]

RO-15

E.2.h.v [Impaired Water Bodies] No

E.2.i. [Floodway] No

E.2.j. [100 Year Floodplain] No

1Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



E.2.k. [500 Year Floodplain] No

E.2.l. [Aquifers] Yes

E.2.l. [Aquifer Names] Principal Aquifer

E.2.n. [Natural Communities] No

E.2.o. [Endangered or Threatened Species] No

E.2.p. [Rare Plants or Animals] No

E.3.a. [Agricultural District] No

E.3.c. [National Natural Landmark] No

E.3.d [Critical Environmental Area] No

E.3.e. [National or State Register of Historic 
Places or State Eligible Sites]

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF 
Workbook.

E.3.f. [Archeological Sites] Yes

E.3.i. [Designated River Corridor] No

2Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report
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SEQR Resolution 
NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC Facility 

 
 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF NY ROME OLD ONEIDA 
SOLAR, LLC WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT 
ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

 
WHEREAS, NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 

principals of NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed 
on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida 
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in construction of an approximately 4.2 megawatt AC 
ground mounted photovoltaic solar facility consisting of racking and foundations, 
inverters and transformers, necessary electrical interconnections and all improvements 
and connections required to transfer and deliver generation offsite, access road, 
security fencing and gating, safety signage and solar photo voltaic (“PV”) panels 
(collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 20± acre portion of a 144± acre parcel 
of land located at 5792 Old Oneida Road, City of Rome, County of Oneida (the “Land”), 
all for the purpose of furthering the mission of New York State renewable energy goals 
by providing renewable energy for consumers in the region under the New York State 
Community Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are referred to collectively 
as the “Facility” and the construction of the Improvements is referred to as the 
“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 

Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the construction and equipping 
of the Facility may have a "significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted term is 
defined in the SEQR Act and the Regulations) and therefore require the preparation of 
an environmental impact statement; and 
 

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the construction, and 
equipping of the Facility may have a significant effect upon the environment, the 
Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency a long environmental assessment 
form (the "EAF"), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 
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WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have a 

significant effect upon the environment, the Agency has reviewed the Determination of 
Significance dated June 27, 2024 (the “Planning Board Review”) by the City of Rome 
Planning Board (the “Lead Agency”), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by 
the Agency at this meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined the EAF and 

the Planning Board Review in order to make a determination as to the potential 
environmental significance of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the EAF, the 
Planning Board Review, and based further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area 
surrounding the Facility and such further investigation of the Facility and its 
environmental effects as the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the 
following findings and determinations with respect to the Facility: 
 

(A) The Facility is as described in the Application and the EAF; 
 

(B) The Facility constitutes a "Type 1 Action" (as defined in the 
Regulations); 

 
(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 

noted in the EAF for the Facility, and none are known to the Agency; 
 

(D) The Facility will not result in (i) substantial adverse change in 
existing air quality; ground or surface water quality or quantity, traffic or noise 
levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; or a substantial increase 
in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; (ii) the removal 
or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna; substantial interference 
with the movement of a resident or migratory fish or wildlife species; impacts on a 
significant habitat area; substantial adverse impacts on threatened or 
endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or (iii) 
other significant adverse impacts to natural resources;  

 
(E) The Facility will not affect a critical environmental area as 

designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g);  
 



 

 
  
   
21833297.v1-7/16/25 

(F) The Facility will not conflict with the community's current 
plans or goals as officially approved or adopted; 

 
(G) The Facility will not result in the impairment of the character 

or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or aesthetic 
resources or of existing community or neighborhood character;  

 
(H) The Facility will not result in a major change in the use of 

either the quantity or type of energy; 
 

(I) The Facility will not result in the creation of a hazard to 
human health; 

 
(J) The Facility will not result in a substantial change in the use, 

or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses; 

 
(K) The Facility will not result in encouraging or attracting of a 

large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, compared 
to the number of people who would come to such place absent the action; 

 
(L) The Facility will not result in the creation of a material 

demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences;  

 
(M) The Facility will not result in changes in two or more 

elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 
environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and 

 
(N) The Facility will not result in two or more related actions 

undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or would have 
a significant impact on the environment, but when considered cumulatively would 
meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 617.7(c).   

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby concurs with the determinations and 

findings of the Lead Agency and determines that the Facility will not have a significant 
impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the preparation of an 
environmental impact statement with respect to the Facility.  As a result, the Agency has 
prepared a negative declaration with respect to the Facility. 
 

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 
file in the Agency's records a negative declaration with respect to the Facility (said 
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negative declaration to be substantially in the form and substantially to the effect of the 
negative declaration attached hereto). 

 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
                   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on July 
25, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following members 
were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 
 
 
Other Attendees:   
 
 
 

 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
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 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
time, location and call-in information for said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in 
all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
            Shawna Papale, Secretary 
 

 



July 25, 2025                                 NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC 

Project Memo 
 
 
Applicant Legal Name 
 
NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC 
149 Water St., Norwalk CT  
 
Description of Project: 
 
4.2 MW AC, ground-mounted solar energy array at 5792 Old Oneida Road, on up to 30 
± acres of leased property. Total Project Cost: $9,054,447 
 
Type of Facility:  Community solar  
 
Will Project involve the abandonment of a facility?  -  No 
 
Proposed PILOT:  $10,000 per MW-AC ($42,000) with annual 2% incremental increase 
(standard OCIDA UTEP) for 25 years. 
 
Estimated PILOT Value: $2,481,351 
Affected Tax Jurisdictions: Oneida County, City of Rome, Sherrill City School District 
(VVS).Current real estate taxes or current PILOT on property: $11,370± on 144 acre 
parcel. 
 
Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Value: $42.945.50 
  
Company Obligations for Financial Assistance:  1. Home Community Agreement in 
Negotiation with City of Rome.  2. A decommissioning plan to the City of Rome as part of 
the permitting package, a decommissioning plan was accepted as part of the Special Use 
Permit approval.   
 
No Job Commitments. 
 
 



(1) Updated:

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
584 Phoenix Drive 

Rome, New York 13441-1405
338-0393 telephone

338-5694 fax

Project Name

Date of Submission

Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director

















6(i) Check all categories best describing the scope of the project:

[ ] Acquisition of land 

[ ] Acquisition of existing building 

[ ] Renovations to existing building 

[ ] Construction of addition to existing building 

[ ] Demolition of existing building or

[ ] Construction of a new building 

[ ] Acquisition of machinery and/or equipment

[ ] Installation of machinery and/or equipment 

[ ] Other (specify) 

6(j) Please indicate the financial assistance you are requesting of the Agency, and provide  
the estimated value of said assistance. Attach a sheet labeled Annual PILOT that shows 
the annual utilization of the Real Property Tax Abatement by year and by 
taxing jurisdiction .

Assistance

[ ] Real Property Tax Abatement

Estimated Value

[ ] Mortgage Tax Exemption (.75%) $

Amount of mortgage: $  

[ ] Sales and Use Tax Exemption ** (8.75%) $

Value of goods/services to be exempted from sales tax: $

[ ] Issuance by the Agency of Tax Exempt Bonds $

Exemption Policy? Yes No

If , please provide a written statement describing the financial assistance being requested
and detailing the reasons the IDA should consider deviating from its Policy.

**



























































GoodFinch Summary 

GoodFinch Management, LLC (headquartered in San Francisco, CA), was founded in 2020 to be a leading 
asset management company focused on the intersection of the American solar industry and capital 
markets. The co-founders of the firm, Hayes Barnard, Tanguy Serra, and Andrew Mills, are pioneers of the 
residential solar industry, having installed or financed an estimated 2 million of the approximately 5 million 
total installations in the United States to date while founding and/or leading many of the most 
consequential businesses in the industry, including Vivint Solar, Paramount Solar, SolarCity, GoodLeap, 
and now, GoodFinch. 

Today, GoodFinch manages approximately $2bn of capital via long-dated private investment funds that 
collectively have over $600mm of undrawn capital. GoodFinch owns over $3bn of solar asset, ABS debt 
and equity residuals of operating solar assets, including interest in over 1GW of operating solar projects. 
GoodFinch is generally viewed as a solution provider in the space and is regularly engaged bilaterally with 
both private and public residential and commercial solar companies to provide bespoke capital and asset 
solutions. As part of this activity GoodFinch is regularly utilizing warehouse and term debt facilities, and 
GoodFinch has significant experience underwriting and managing various project finance debt facilities, 
including those in place at DSD. This experience leaves GoodFinch well-disposed to effectively manage 
the leverage supporting the assets owned by DSD. We believe GoodFinch is the only investment firm with 
dedicated capital and dedicated mindshare in the solar industry, and as a result DSD would fit perfectly 
with GoodFinch’s operations. 

Mr. Serra, GoodFinch Chief Investment Officer and Partner, co-founded Vivint Solar in 2011 and built the 
company into the second largest solar installation company in the United States before successfully selling 
the company to Blackstone in 2013. Vivint Solar pioneered a number of Tax Equity structures for PPAs with 
various financial institutions including US Bank, as well as innovations on billing residential systems for 
energy with Enphase systems. Mr. Barnard, GoodFinch Chairman and Partner, founded solar technology 
company Paramount Solar in 2011, which he sold to SolarCity Corporation (“SolarCity”) in 2013. 

In 2013, Messrs. Barnard and Serra joined SolarCity’s executive team; Mr. Barnard served as SolarCity’s 
Chief Revenue Officer while Mr. Serra served as the company’s President and Chief Operating Officer. 
Andrew Mills, GoodFinch Partner and Co-Founder, joined Messrs. Barnard and Serra at SolarCity in 2015. 
Under their leadership, SolarCity achieved almost 30% market share of the financing, installation, and 
servicing of commercial and residential solar in the United States, before Tesla acquired SolarCity in 2016. 
The team led the annual installation and financing of 1GW of distributed solar systems with 17,000 W-2 
employees. Mr. Barnard and Mr. Serra oversaw customer care, billing and collections, operations and 
maintenance, fund accounting and cash waterfalls for approximately 1 million solar systems across the 
United States. 

In 2016, Mr. Barnard founded the sustainable home improvement financing company GoodLeap. Mr. Serra 
soon thereafter joined the company as Chief Financial Officer.  Mr. Mills also joined as the first employee 
of GoodLeap’s consumer finance business and built out the company’s residential solar underwriting and 
financing platform and initiated and scaled the servicing of those GoodLeap-originated assets. Today, 
GoodLeap is the largest climate-dedicated lender in the United States, having originated over $27 billion 
of residential solar and sustainable home improvement loans across all 50 states, D.C., and Puerto Rico 
that have facilitated the transition of over one million homes in the United States to renewable energy. Mr. 
Serra led GoodLeap’s first securitizations and obtained rating agency support. The GoodLeap ABS shelf 



(including its predecessor names) has issued 20 securitizations working with numerous financial institutions 
including Goldman Sachs, Bank of America, Atlas, Citibank, Blackstone, KKR, and New York Life, as well 
as Moody’s, Fitch, Kroll and Standard and Poor’s, and today GoodLeap is the largest renewables ABS 
issuer in the United States. GoodFinch is often the largest contributor of assets to GoodLeap’s multi-
contributor ABS shelf. 

In addition, GoodFinch’s two other partners, Nick Franchot and Jamie Hutson, bring significant and 
complementary experience. Mr. Franchot began his career at CapitalSource in Maryland, which was one 
of the more significant ABS issuers in the country, before serving in the US Treasury Department as a 
Senior Advisor focused on the design and implementation of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act that led to several laws and regulations that govern consumer lending in the 
United States today. Based on his further experience as head of credit investing at Hall Capital Partners 
(amongst the largest multi-family offices in the world with approximately $50 billion of capital under 
management), he would bring deep expertise and relationships in the debt capital markets to support the  

Mr. Hutson was previously the Chief Investment Officer of DSD Renewables, joining the firm in 2019 from 
GE Capital Energy Financial Services. As a member of the DSD leadership team since its spin out from 
General Electric, Mr. Hutson oversaw the underwriting and financing of hundreds of similar assets across 
a diverse portfolio of assets. His perspective is unique in creating an ability to move quickly to deliver 
execution certainty when considering the various components which will need to be managed through the 
transaction.   

 



Estimated Full Market Value (in thousands) 4,309$                 Based upon Emeren's  NYS Calculator
Muni Equalization Rate % at time of applicatio 45.00% (Provide)
Estimated Assessment in 1,000s 1,939$                 Auto calculates

Full Payment 2026 Estimated 2027 Estimated Rate Year Muni
Oneida County 10.069977$         19,527$              10.271377$      10.476804$          2025 Oneida

City or Township** 13.524041$         26,225$              13.794522$      14.070412$          2025 Rome-Outer Dist
Village** -$                    -$                   

School District 35.623048$         69,078$              36.335509$      37.062219$          24-25 VVS
Total 59.22$                 114,830$            60.401407$      61.609435$          

**Verify equalization rates with jurisdiction for parity with other jurisdictions
Annual rate increase factor of 2% is used in calculator

1.02 Fixed Payment
Full 485-b Fixed Pyt Benefit Value IDA-Comm IDA-Industrial OTHER

2027 Year 1 61.61$        119,469$             59,734$              42,000$            77,469$                59,734$          39,823$            
2 62.84$        121,858$             67,022$              42,840$            79,018$                60,929$          40,619$            
3 64.10$        124,295$             74,577$              43,697$            80,599$                93,222$          41,432$            
4 65.38$        126,781$             82,408$              44,571$            82,211$                95,086$          42,260$            
5 66.69$        129,317$             90,522$              45,462$            83,855$                96,988$          43,106$            
6 68.02$        131,903$             98,927$              46,371$            85,532$                131,903$        87,936$            
7 69.38$        134,541$             107,633$            47,299$            87,243$                134,541$        89,694$            
8 70.77$        137,232$             116,647$            48,245$            88,987$                137,232$        91,488$            
9 72.19$        139,977$             125,979$            49,210$            90,767$                139,977$        93,318$            

10 73.63$        142,776$             135,638$            50,194$            92,582$                142,776$        95,184$            
11 75.10$        145,632$             145,632$            51,198$            94,434$                145,632$        145,632$          
12 76.60$        148,545$             148,545$            52,222$            96,323$                148,545$        148,545$          
13 78.14$        151,515$             151,515$            53,266$            98,249$                151,515$        151,515$          
14 79.70$        154,546$             154,546$            54,331$            100,214$              154,546$        154,546$          
15 81.29$        157,637$             157,637$            55,418$            102,219$              157,637$        157,637$          
16 82.92$        160,789$             160,789$            56,526$            104,263$              160,789$        160,789$          
17 84.58$        164,005$             164,005$            57,657$            106,348$              164,005$        164,005$          
18 86.27$        167,285$             167,285$            58,810$            108,475$              167,285$        167,285$          
19 87.99$        170,631$             170,631$            59,986$            110,645$              170,631$        170,631$          
20 89.75$        174,044$             174,044$            61,186$            112,858$              174,044$        174,044$          
21 91.55$        177,524$             177,524$            62,410$            115,115$              177,524$        177,524$          
22 93.38$        181,075$             181,075$            63,658$            117,417$              181,075$        181,075$          
23 95.25$        184,696$             184,696$            64,931$            119,765$              184,696$        184,696$          
24 97.15$        188,390$             188,390$            66,230$            122,161$              188,390$        188,390$          
25 99.09$        192,158$             192,158$            67,554$            124,604$              192,158$        192,158$          

Total: 3,826,624$          3,477,561$         1,345,273$       2,481,351$           3,610,862$     3,183,333$       
For Page 9 of Application

Full 485-b IDA-Comm IDA-Industrial OTHER
Year 1 50 50 66.66666
Year 2 45 50 66.66666
Year 3 40 25 66.66666
Year 4 35 25 66.66666
Year 5 30 25 66.66666
Year 6 25 33.33333
Year 7 20 33.33333
Year 8 15 33.33333
Year 9 10 33.33333

Year 10 5 33.33333

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX BENEFIT VALUE CALCULATOR

Information on Real Property Proposed For PILOT

Tax Rates Per 1k of Assessment at time of application*

*Do not include Special District Tax Rates

PILOT VALUE CALCULATOR VALUES

Abatement Percentages

To be used as guidance to calculate the PILOT Benefit value on Page 9 of application. Rates and assessments are for example only.





Jeffrey M. Lanigan                                                                                                                                  Rome Planning Board 
Mayor                        (C) Mark Esposito 

                  (VC) Joe Calandra 
                         Eric Gonzalez 

                         Brittany Fumarola 
                                  David Smith 

                                       
City of Rome Planning Board 

ROME CITY HALL, 198 N. WASHINGTON STREET 
ROME, NEW YORK 13440-5815 

Telephone:  (315) 339-7643   Fax:  (315) 838-1167 
 

 
March 2nd, 2025 

 
 
 

Arif Alam 
Business Operations Director 
100 First Stamford Place 
Suite 302 
Stamford, CT 06902 
 
 
Dear Mr. Alam: 

 
At the regular meeting of the Rome Planning Board held on April 1st, 2025, Emeren US, LLC’s request for 
site plan approval for the construction of a 4.2 MW solar array covering approximately 20 acres at 5792 
Old Oneida Road was conditionally approved (3-0). 

 
The Board placed the following condition(s) on the approval: 
 

1. Prior to receiving the stamped final site plan, the applicant shall make revisions to their submitted 
materials in accordance with the review letter from Barton & Loguidice dated 03/27/2025. 

 
2. Prior to receipt of a building permit, the applicant shall finalize and submit all permits, agreements, 

and securities outlined in "Additional Information and Anticipated Permits/Coordination" items 1-6 
in the review letter from Barton & Loguidice dated 03/27/2025. 

 
3. Prior to the receipt of a building permit, the applicant shall execute a host-community agreement 

with the City of Rome. 
 
Once you have satisfied the first condition listed above, you will need to submit an electronic copy for 
digital stamping.  This should include all final project drawings and a cover sheet titled “final site plan”. The 
cover sheet should list all included drawings, their sheet number, and date of final revision. You may 
submit paper copies for stamping as desired for your records. 
 
The subsequent conditions listed above will need to be satisfied before you receive a building permit for 
this project.  
 



 - 2 -  

www.romenewyork.com 

On behalf of the Board, we wish you good luck with your project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Garret S. Wyckoff 
Planner 

 
 
Cc: James Rizzo, Office of the Corporation Counsel 
 Joe Guiliano, Commissioner of Public Works 

Mark Domenico, Chief Code Enforcement Officer 
Eric Seelig, City Clerk 
File 
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HOST COMMUNITY BENEFIT AGREEMENT 

THIS HOST COMMUNITY BENEFIT AGREEMENT (the "Community Benefit Agreement"), 
dated as of the ___ day of  [month, 2025] by and between the City of Rome, in the state of New 
York (the "Town"), with offices at 198 N Washington St, Rome, New York 13440 and NY Rome 
Old Oneida Solar, LLC (the “Owner”), a Delaware Limited Liability Company, with a principal 
place of business located at 149 Water St, Suite 302, Norwalk, CT, 06854 (the "Company"). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the Company is developing or shall develop a large-scale solar energy 
project with an expected nameplate capacity (“Capacity’’) of approximately 4.2 Megawatt AC 
on a parcel of land located within the Town at 5792 Old Oneida Rd, Rome, NY 13440 and 
identified as SBL # 272.000-2-36 (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the Company intends to enter into an agreement respecting the Project 
making provisions for payments in lieu of taxes (the “PILOT Agreement”) by the Company with 
the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “IDA”) for the benefit of the Town, 
Oneida County (the “County”) and the Sherrill City School District; 

WHEREAS, the Company recognizes that the Project will impact the surrounding 
community, particularly the Town, more specifically that, during the development, construction, 
and long-term operation of said Project, the Town will incur significant expenses in connection 
with its “police powers”; 

WHEREAS, in consideration for the impacts on the community with respect to the 
Project, the Company has agreed to pay a Host Community Benefit Fee (as such term is defined 
in Section 2.1 below) to the Town, as set forth within this Community Benefit Agreement in 
addition to payments made pursuant to the PILOT Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Town and the Company wish to memorialize the terms and conditions 
associated with the payment of the Host Community Benefit Fee; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained, and other good 
and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, it is 
mutually agreed as follows: 

Article I – Representations and Covenants 

Section 1.1. Representations and Covenants of the Town. 

The Town makes the following representations and covenants as the basis for the 
undertakings on its part herein contained: 

(a) The Town has the power to enter into the transaction contemplated by this
Community Benefit Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder. 

DRAFT PROPOSED 
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(b) The Town has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Community Benefit 
Agreement. 

 
(c) Neither the execution and delivery of this Community Benefit Agreement, the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby nor the fulfillment of or compliance with 
the provisions of this Community Benefit Agreement will conflict with or result in a breach of any 
of the terms, conditions or provisions of any agreement or instrument to which the Town is a party 
or by which it is bound, or will constitute default under any of the foregoing. 

 
Section 1.2. Representations and Covenants of the Company. 

 
The Company makes the following representations and covenants as the basis for the 

undertakings on its part herein contained: 
 

(a) The Company is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of 
New York, has the authority to enter into this Community Benefit Agreement and has duly 
authorized the execution and delivery of this Community Benefit Agreement. 

 
(b) Neither the execution and delivery of this Community Benefit Agreement, the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby nor the fulfillment of or compliance with 
the provisions of this Community Benefit Agreement will conflict with or result in a breach of any 
of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which 
the Company is a party or by which it is bound, or will constitute a default under any of the 
foregoing, or result in the creation or imposition of any lien of any nature upon any of the property 
of the Company under the terms of any such instrument or agreement. 

 
(c) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, 

before or by any court, public board or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, 
threatened against or affecting the Company, to which the Company is a party, and in which an 
adverse result would materially diminish or adversely impact on the Company's ability to fulfill 
its obligations under this Community Benefit Agreement. 

 
Article II - Payee/Payment of Host Community Benefit Fee. 

 

Section 2.1.   (a)    Host Community Benefit Fee.   In consideration for the impacts on  the 
community with respect to the Project, the Company agrees to pay an annual fee to the Town at 
its address noted above in the amount of fifteen hundred dollars [($1,500)] per megawatt AC (the 
“Host Community Benefit Fee”) commencing within five (5) business days of the date the Project 
achieves commercial operation and by each subsequent anniversary date thereafter (each a 
“Payment Date”). The Company agrees to make annual payments of the Host Community Benefit 
Fee for a period of fifteen (15) years. The term “commercial operation” shall mean the later of 
when the Project has (i) been issued a certificate of completion by the Town, or (ii) commenced 
generating electricity (excluding any electricity generated during start-up and commissioning of 
the Project) for sale. 
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(b) Notice: Cure. In the event the Company fails to pay the Community Benefit Fee 
by the date due under this Community Benefit Agreement (a “Monetary Breach”), the Town 
Board shall provide written notice of the alleged Monetary Breach specifying the details of the 
alleged Monetary Breach and the amount due. The Company shall cure any Monetary Breaches 
within ten (10) business days after receipt of such notice. 

 
(c) Use of Fund; Public Purposes. The parties agree and acknowledge that the payment 

made hereunder is to provide revenue to the Town to partially mitigate the additional burdens 
being placed on the Town as a result of the Project to be used for public purposes to be undertaken 
by the Town. The revenues paid by the Company to the Town, which shall be utilized at the sole 
and absolute discretion of the Town, including, but not limited to, as a source of funding for 
prospective costs and expenses associated with and related to anticipated municipal services and 
additional infrastructural improvements to be provided as a result of the Project’s presence within 
the Town. 

 
Article III - Termination. 

 

Section 3.1. This Community Benefit Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of (a) full 
payment of all Community Benefit Fees to the Town, (b) failure to enter into or termination of the 
PILOT Agreement, or (c) full cessation of operation and decommissioning of Project, unless 
otherwise terminated by the written agreement of the Parties hereto. 

 
Section 3.2 The Town agrees that for the life of the Project (approximately twenty-five 

to thirty years from commercial operation), the Town shall not modify the terms and conditions of 
any permits issued to or its regulations governing operation of the Project in a manner that, at the 
sole discretion of the Company, materially and adversely impacts the Project or requires the 
Company to change in any material manner its operations  The Town agrees that for the term of the 
PILOT, the Town shall not assess additional fees or taxes of the Project.  Following expiration or 
Termination of the Pilot, should the town assess any additional taxes or fees of the Project, which 
assessment shall be done in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Town taking into 
account any and all depreciation of value of the Project, in no case shall any such assessment be 
greater than the amount the Company had been paying under the PILOT. The Company reserves 
its rights to initiate a judicial challenge to the Town's assessment of additional fees or taxes, or 
modifications of the terms and conditions of permits or regulations in question.  

 
 

Article IV - Miscellaneous. 
 

Section 4.1. This Community Benefit Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original but which together shall constitute a single 
instrument. 

 
Section 4.2. All notices, claims and other communications hereunder shall be in writing 

and shall be deemed to be duly given if personally delivered or mailed first class, postage prepaid, 
as follows: 
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To the Town: 
 

[City of Rome] 
[198 N Washington St] 
[Rome, NY 13440] 
[Attention: Town Supervisor] 

 
To the Company: 

 
NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC 
149 Water St, Suite 302 
Norwalk, CT 06854 

 
or at such other address as any party may from time to time furnish to the other party by notice 
given in accordance with the provisions of this Section. All notices shall be deemed given when 
mailed or personally delivered in the manner provided in this Section. 

 
Section 4.3.  This Community Benefit Agreement shall be governed by, and all matters in 

connection herewith shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of 
New York applicable to agreements executed and to be wholly performed therein and the parties 
hereto hereby agree to submit to the personal jurisdiction of the federal or state courts located in 
or for Steuben County, New York. 

 
Section 4.4. (a) The obligations and agreements of the Town contained herein shall be 

deemed the obligations and agreements of the Town, and not of any trustee, officer, agent or 
employee of the Town in his individual capacity, and the trustees, officers, agents and employees 
of the Town shall not be liable personally hereon or thereon or be subject to any personal liability 
or accountability based upon or in respect hereof or thereof or of any transaction contemplated 
hereby or thereby. 

 
(b) The obligations and agreements of the Company contained herein shall be 

deemed the obligations and agreements of the Company, and not of any member, officer, agent or 
employee of the Company in his individual capacity, and the members, officers, agents and 
employees of the Company shall not be liable personally hereon or thereon or be subject to any 
personal liability or accountability based upon or in respect hereof or thereof or of any transaction 
contemplated hereby or thereby. 

 
Section 4.5. The failure of any Party to insist on the strict performance of any term or 

provision hereof will not be deemed a waiver of the right to insist on strict performance of any 
other term or provision, nor will it be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach. Unless 
specifically stated, the selection of any specific remedy hereunder or under any applicable law, 
rule or regulation (“Applicable Law”) by either Party shall not be deemed an election of remedies 
limiting either Party’s right to seek any other remedy otherwise allowed by this Community 
Benefit Agreement or Applicable Law. 
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Section 4.6 ASSIGNMENT BY TOWN. 
The Town may transfer or assign any of its rights or obligations under this Community 

Benefit Agreement, provided that such transfer or assignment is due to a Town related financing 
transaction, without the prior written consent of the Company. The Company shall cooperate with 
the Town from time to time, including, without limitation, by entering into a consent and 
assignment or other agreements with the Town and the financing parties involved with any such 
financing or securitization in connection with any collateral assignment on such terms as may be 
customary under the circumstances and shall reasonably be required by the involved financing 
parties. 

Section 4.7 ASSIGNMENT BY COMPANY 
. The Company may, without the consent of the Town: (a) assign this Community 

Benefit Agreement to any (x) purchaser or successor in and to the Project, (y) affiliate or subsidiary 
of the Company that is controlled by, controlling or under common control with the Company, or 
(z) persons or entities providing financing for the Project (“Lender”, and such purchaser, affiliate, 
and Lender are collectively defined as a “Successor”), provided such Successor assumes and 
agrees to be bound by this Community Benefit Agreement by executing and submitting to the 
Town a notice of assignment and assumption of this Community Benefit Agreement ten days prior 
to any such assignment, and may (b) pledge, encumber, hypothecate, mortgage, grant a security 
interest in and collaterally assign this Community Benefit Agreement to any to any Lender as 
security for the repayment of any indebtedness and/or the performance of any obligation whether 
or not such obligation is related to any indebtedness (a “Lender's Lien”). A Lender shall have the 
absolute right to: (a) assign its Lender’s Lien; (b) take possession of and operate the Project or any 
portion thereof solely in accordance with the Company’s rights under this Community Benefit 
Agreement (and subject to the Company’s obligations under this Community Benefit Agreement) 
and perform any obligations to be performed by Company or a Successor hereunder; or (c) exercise 
any rights of Company hereunder. The Town shall cooperate with the Company, its affiliates, any 
Successor from time to time, including, without limitation, by entering into a consent and 
assignment or other agreements with such Successor and the Company in connection with any 
collateral assignment on such terms as may be customary under the circumstances and shall 
reasonably be required by such Successor, including execution of a consent to the assignment of 
this Community Benefit Agreement. In the event this Community Benefit Agreement is assigned 
to a Successor, the Company shall have no further obligations hereunder, except for any 
obligations outstanding on the date of the transfer, but only if the Successor has in writing 
confirmed its acceptance of its obligations and Successor is not in breach of its obligations under 
this Community Benefit Agreement. Nothing herein shall limit in any way the right of the owners 
of the Company to sell or otherwise transfer (including by merger or consolidation with any other 
entity) all or a portion of their ownership interests in the Company. 

 
 

[signature page to follow] 



 

[Signature Page to Community Benefit Agreement] 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Community Benefit 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

 
CITY OF ROME 

 
 

By:  
Name: 
Title: Supervisor 

 
 
 

NY ROME OLD ONEIDA SOLAR, LLC 

 
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  

https://na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA8yQyEATXoju5HQaHzu6XUrXrz03EMuMJ


 www.cscos.com           (315) 455-2000              contactus@cscos.com            499 Col. Eileen Collins Blvd., Syracuse, NY 13212 

 

 

May 13, 2024 

 

Mr. Arif Alam 

Emeren  

100 First Stamford Place, Suite 302 

Stamford, Connecticut 06902 

 

Re: Decommissioning Estimate 

NY Old Oneida Solar Farm, LLC  

 Rome, Oneida County, New York 

 

Mr Alam: 

 

NY Old Oneida Solar Farm, LLC proposes to construct and operate a ground mounted single axis 

tracker photovoltaic (PV) solar system, approximately 4.2 megawatts-AC in capacity. The NY Old 

Oneida Solar Farm, LLC Project (Project) is located on privately owned land at 5792 Old Oneida 

Road, in the City of Rome, New York (hereafter “subject property”). The approximate 144 acre 

subject property is located on the south side of Old Oneida Road. 

 

Ground-mounted solar facilities are designed, engineered and constructed to operate for at least 

20 years, and in some cases for as long as 30 years. During construction, portions of the site may 

be compacted, excavated and graded for optimal installation and operation. The 

decommissioning plan, provided under separate cover, outlines the steps that will be taken to 

remove the solar system and its associated appurtenances from the project site and return the 

parcel to conditions similar to pre-installation.  

 

It is estimated that the physical removal work will take approximately 6-8 weeks to complete. 

Inverters, transformers and switchgear will be removed from their concrete pads. The electrical 

equipment will be sold back to the manufacturers or to a recycling facility. Racking materials and 

fencing will be pulled from the ground and folded for transport. All other facility fencing, 

concrete pads, access roads and other components will be removed as described previously, and 

the site will be restored as required. The facility owner will be responsible for all decommissioning 

costs and will obtain all permits and approvals required by the Town prior to commencement of 

the decommissioning work. The current day estimated cost of decommissioning the facility is 

$307,840 (2024 dollars, see the attached table for a breakdown of the estimate) and this would 

be the amount of the initial bond provided.  

 

 

 

 



 www.cscos.com           (315) 455-2000              contactus@cscos.com            499 Col. Eileen Collins Blvd., Syracuse, NY 13212 

 

 

  

Mr. Alam 

May 13. 2024 
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Should you have any questions or require additional information, please feel free to contact us. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

C&S ENGINEERS, INC. 

 

 

 

 

Eric N. Kenna, P.E. 

Service Group Manager 

(315) 703-4109 

ekenna@cscos.com 

 
 



NY Old Oneida Solar Farm,  LLC

5/13/24

Unit Rate

1 Remove approximately 5,968 linear feet of chain link fencing - 8' tall. (4 men, 7 days) 224             mh 75.00$                    16,800.00$              

2 Rental of bobcat for fence removal - 1 week including delivery and pickup. 1                 week 2,500.00$              2,500.00$                

3 Remove two (2) concrete pads (size not defined) Assume one hour each for excavator and operator. 2                 each 1,500.00$              3,000.00$                

4 Remove 191 single axis tracker frames ( assume two hours per frame for a two-man crew) 764             mh 95.00$                    72,580.00$              

5 Disposal of Racking Materials - 20 yard dumpsters 15               each 1,000.00$              15,000.00$              

6 Remove 20 ft wide gravel access road. 4,639SY=1,531CY=152 truckloads (haul away and spoil) 152             loads 150.00$                  22,800.00$              

7 Remove 9,568 PV panels (assumes 45 panels removed per hour with a 6 man crew - general laborers) 1,276          mh 60.00$                    76,560.00$              

8 Remove overhead wires and six poles (utility crew) (4 men, 2 days) 1                 lsum 10,000.00$            10,000.00$              

9 Remove Underground conduit and conductors and backfill (operator, helper and excavator) 60               mh 450.00$                  27,000.00$              

10 Spot regrading of site as needed.(operator and excavator) 60               mh 300.00$                  18,000.00$              

11 Reseeding of disturbed areas of the site 1                 lsum 2,500.00$              2,500.00$                

12 Move topsoil from stockpile area to infill road removal and basin (operator, helper and excavator) 40               mh 450.00$                  18,000.00$              

13 SWPPP Preparation and NOI Submittal 1                 lsum 10,500.00$            10,500.00$              

14 Erosion and Sediment Control Measures (4 men, 2 days) 64.00          mh 75.00$                    4,800.00$                

15 Weekly SWPPP Inspections 12.00          lsum 650.00$                  7,800.00$                

16

Current Day Total
307,840.00$           

Decommissioning Estimate 

File: Old Oneida - Decommissioning estimate_.xlsxF:\Project\V32 - Renesola Power Holdings, LLC\V32007002 - Old Oneida Site Permitting\Planning-Study\Deliverables(PDF)\Decom Estimate\Old 

Oneida - Decommissioning estimate_.xlsx
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Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting 

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor.  Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.   

Complete Part 1 based on information currently available.  If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist, 
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to
update or fully develop that information.   

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B.  In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow.  If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any 
additional information.  Section G requires the name and signature of the project sponsor to verify that the information 
contained in Part 1is accurate and complete.

A. Project and Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:  

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map): 

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need): 

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone:  

E-Mail:

Address:

City/PO: State: Zip Code: 

Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): Telephone: 

E-Mail:

Address:

City/PO: State: Zip Code:

Property Owner  (if not same as sponsor): Telephone: 
E-Mail:

Address:

City/PO: State: Zip Code:

NY Rome Old Oneida Road Solar Farm

5792 Old Oneida Rd, Rome, NY 13440

The proposed project involves the construction of a ground-mounted solar farm and associated electrical appurtenances. The solar photovoltaic (PV)
system is proposed for installation on site and will generate up to 5.96 MWp-DC/4.2 MW-AC. The interconnection wiring will be pole mounted, overhead
wiring.

Emeren Group LTD (attn: Bradley Davis)
647-624-4566

bradley.davis@emeren.com

100 First Stamford Plan, Suite 302

Stamford CT 06902

Bryan A. Bayer, PWS, CE
315-455-2000

bbayer@cscos.com

499 Col. Eileen Collins Boulevard

Syracuse NY 13212

James D. Elliott (Tax Parcel No.: 272.000-0002-036 and 257.004-0001-031)

5792 Old Oneida Road

Rome NY 13440



Page 2 of 13 

B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals  Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial
assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) 
Required 

Application Date 
(Actual or projected) 

a. City Town , Yes  No
or Village Board of Trustees

b. City, Town or Village  Yes  No 
Planning Board or Commission

c. City  Town or  Yes  No 
Village Zoning Board of Appeals

d. Other local agencies  Yes  No 

e. County agencies  Yes  No 

f. Regional agencies  Yes  No 

g. State agencies  Yes  No 

h. Federal agencies  Yes  No 

i. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? Yes  No 

ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program?  Yes  No 
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area?  Yes  No 

C. Planning and Zoning

C.1. Planning and zoning actions.
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or  regulation be the  Yes No
 only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?  

If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.
If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1

C.2. Adopted land use plans.

a. Do any municipally- adopted  (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site  Yes  No 
where the proposed action would be located?

If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action  Yes  No 
would be located? 
b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway  Yes  No 

Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)

If Yes, identify the plan(s):   
     _______________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan,    Yes  No
or an adopted municipal farmland  protection plan?

If Yes, identify the plan(s): 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

✔ City Building Permit TBD

✔

✔ Special Use Permit January 5, 2024

✔

✔ Oneida County 239M Review, Oneida County
PILOT

TBD

✔

✔ NYSERDA Funding, NYSDEC SPDES
Construction, NYSDEC JD, SHPO

TBD

✔ USACE Jurisdictional Determination TBD

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

NYS Heritage Areas:Mohawk Valley Heritage Corridor

✔

City of Rome Comprehensive Plan; Urban Agricultural Assessment for Rome, NY; Oneida County Agricultural and Farmland Protection Plan
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C.3.  Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance.  Yes  No
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit?  Yes  No 

c. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action?  Yes  No  
If Yes,

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?   ___________________________________________________________________

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located?    ________________________________________________________________

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
    _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

c. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

d. What parks serve the project site?
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)?
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? _____________  acres 
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? _____________  acres 
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? _____________  acres 

c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use?  Yes  No 
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,

square feet)?    % ____________________  Units: ____________________
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision?  Yes  No 
If Yes,

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed?  Yes  No 
iii. Number of  lots proposed?   ________
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes?  Minimum  __________  Maximum __________

 Yes  No 
 _____  months 

 _____ 
 _____  month  _____ year 

Will proposed action be constructed in multiple phases?
If No, anticipated period of construction:
If Yes:

Total number of phases anticipated
Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition)
Anticipated completion date of final phase  _____  month  _____year 
Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may
determine timing or duration of future phases: _______________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

179.71 acres equals total acreage of parcel
no. 272.000-0002-036, 257.004-0001-031,
272.000-1-34, and 257.004-0001-003.001
owned by James D. Elliot (site and
immediately adjacent to site)

✔

OS Open Space

✔

✔

Rome City School District

City of Rome Police Department, Oneida County Sheriff's Office, New York State Police

City of Rome Fire Department, Rome Memorial Hospital Emergency Services, Amcare Ambulance Service

Rome Wildlife Management Area, Bellamy Harbor Park, Riverside Park, Haselton Park, Franklyn Field, Vogel Park, Wiggins Park

144.1
17.6

179.71

✔

✔

✔
8

Commercial
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f. Does the project include new residential uses?  Yes No  
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

  One Family      Two Family         Three Family        Multiple Family (four or more)

Initial Phase    ___________      ___________    ____________      ________________________ 
At completion 
   of all phases       ___________      ___________    ____________   ________________________  

g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)?  Yes  No   
If Yes,

i. Total number of structures ___________
ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: ________height; ________width;  and  _______ length

iii. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled:  ______________________ square feet

h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any    Yes  No 
liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?

If Yes,  
i. Purpose of the impoundment:  ________________________________________________________________________________

ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water:                       Ground water   Surface water streams   Other specify:
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment.    Volume: ____________ million gallons; surface area: ____________  acres 
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure:       ________ height; _______ length

vi. Construction method/materials  for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

D.2.  Project Operations
a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both?  Yes  No

(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)

If Yes:
i .What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?  _______________________________________________________________ 

ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
Volume (specify tons or cubic yards): ____________________________________________
Over what duration of time? ____________________________________________________

iii. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials?  Yes  No
If yes, describe. ___________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated?  _____________________________________acres
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? _______________________________ acres

vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? __________________________ feet
viii. Will the excavation require blasting?  Yes  No 
ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan: _____________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment  Yes  No 
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes: 
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description):  ______________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Solar racks

✔

✔

191
8.75 15.93 98.4

N/A

✔

✔

✔

Three wetlands, one stream, and two ditches were identified by C&S staff within the vicinity of the project. No impacts to wetland or
stream habitats are anticipated as a result of the proposed project. Non-jurisdictional portions of the ditches will be impacted by the
proposed project.
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ii.

iii.

Describe how the  proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Will proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? Yes No
If Yes, describe: __________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Will proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

a  of vegetation proposed to be removed  ___________________________________________________________
 acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion ________________________________________

purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):  ____________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

proposed method of plant removal: ________________________________________________________________________
if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s): _________________________________________________

v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance: _________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day:      __________________________ gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply?  Yes  No 

If Yes:
Name of district or service area:   _________________________________________________________________________
Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal?  Yes  No 
Is the project site in the existing district?  Yes  No 
Is expansion of the district needed?  Yes  No 
Do existing lines serve the project site?  Yes  No  

iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project: ________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Source(s) of supply for the district: ________________________________________________________________________

iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site?  Yes  No 
If, Yes: 

Applicant/sponsor for new district: ________________________________________________________________________
Date application submitted or anticipated: __________________________________________________________________
Proposed source(s) of supply for new district: _______________________________________________________________

v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project: ___________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), maximum pumping capacity: _______ gallons/minute.

d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes?  Yes  No 
If Yes: 

i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day:  _______________  gallons/day
ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and

approximate volumes or proportions of each):   __________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities?  Yes  No
If Yes:

Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used: _____________________________________________________________
Name of district:  ______________________________________________________________________________________
Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project?  Yes  No 

 Is the project site in the existing district?  Yes  No 
 Is expansion of the district needed?  Yes  No 

Placement of structures and associated grading activities are proposed within non-jurisdictional ditch features on site. Approximately
0.008 acre of impacts to non-jurisdictional ditches are anticipated.

✔

✔

✔

✔
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 Yes  No Do existing sewer lines serve the project site?
Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project: ____________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

Applicant/sponsor for new district: ____________________________________________________________________
Date application submitted or anticipated: _______________________________________________________________
What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge? __________________________________________________

v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed
receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste: _______________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________    

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point  Yes  No 
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?

If Yes:
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?

_____ Square feet or  _____ acres (impervious surface) 
_____  Square feet or  _____ acres (parcel size) 

ii. Describe types of new point sources.  __________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Where will the stormwater runoff  be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,
groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

If to surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:  ________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties?  Yes  No 

iv. Does proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater?  Yes  No
f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel  Yes  No 

combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?
If Yes, identify: 

i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit,  Yes  No 
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes:
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area?  (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet  Yes  No 

ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:

___________Tons/year ( ) of Carbon Dioxide (CO2)
___________Tons/year ( ) of Nitrous Oxide (N2 )
___________Tons/year ( ) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
___________Tons/year ( ) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF6)
___________Tons/year ( ) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflo rocarbons (H )
___________Tons/year ( ) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

✔

0.97
144.1

None

Stormwater will be directed to on-site surface water and drainage ways.

✔
✔

✔

Construction vehicles during the construction period only (Monday through Friday)

Not applicable

Not applicable

✔
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h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants,  Yes  No 
landfills, composting facilities)?

If Yes:
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric): ________________________________________________________________

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring): ________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as  Yes  No
quarry or landfill operations?

If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):   
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

j. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial  Yes  No 
new demand for transportation facilities or services?

If Yes:
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply):  Morning  Evening Weekend

 Randomly between hours of __________  to  ________.
ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day

v.

Parking spaces: Existing _____________ Proposed ___________ Net increase/decrease _____________

 Yes  No vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within ½ mile of the proposed site?
vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric  Yes  No 

 or other alternative fueled vehicles? 
viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing  Yes  No

pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand  Yes  No 
for energy?

If Yes:
i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action: ____________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or

other):
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade  to an existing substation?  Yes  No 

l. Hours of operation.  Answer all items which apply.
i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:

Monday - Friday: _________________________ Monday - Friday: ____________________________
Saturday: ________________________________ Saturday: ___________________________________
Sunday: _________________________________ Sunday: ____________________________________
Holidays: ________________________________ Holidays: ___________________________________

✔

✔

✔

✔

7 AM - 5 PM
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

24 hours unmanned
24 hours unmanned
24 hours unmanned
24 hours unmanned
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m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction,  Yes  No 
operation, or both?

If yes:   
i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen?  Yes  No 
 Describe: _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

n. W thill prope os actioed havn e outd lighoor ting?  Yes  No  
 If yes: 
i. Describe source(s), location(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen?  Yes  No
Describe: _________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

o. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day?  Yes  No
If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:     ______________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

p.  Yes  No Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum ( over 1,100 gallons)
or chemical products ?

If Yes: 
Product(s) to be stored ______________________________________________________________________________________
Volume(s) ______ per unit time ___________ (e.g., month, year)
Generally  describe proposed storage facilities ________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides,   Yes   No 
insecticides) during construction or operation?

If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices?   Yes   No 
r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal   Yes   No

of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?
If Yes: 

i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
Construction:  ____________________  tons per ________________ (unit of time)
Operation :      ____________________  tons per ________________ (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
Construction:  ________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Operation:  __________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
Construction:  ________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Operation:  __________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

✔

Ambient noise levels will only be exceeded during the construction period. The solar array equipment will generate a minor amount of noise during
operation.

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

0.5
0

month
month

Minor trash during construction from packaging materials

None

Typical rolloff dumpster

None
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s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility?   Yes    No  
If Yes:

i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or
other disposal activities): ___________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:
________ Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
________ Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment

iii. If landfill, anticipated site life: ________________________________ years

t. Will proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous  Yes  No 
waste?

If Yes: 
i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility: ___________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents: ___________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated  _____ tons/month
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents: ____________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility?  Yes  No  
If Yes: provide name and location of facility: _______________________________________________________________________ 

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:    

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site
a. Existing land uses.

i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
  Urban        Industrial        Commercial        Residential (suburban)        Rural (non-farm) 
  Forest        Agriculture     Aquatic        Other (specify): ____________________________________ 
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.
Land use or  
Covertype 

Current 
Acreage 

Acreage After 
Project Completion 

Change 
(Acres +/-) 

Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces
Forested
Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non-
agricultural, including abandoned agricultural)
Agricultural
(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.) 
Surface water features
(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.) 
Wetlands (freshwater or tidal)
Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill)

Other
Describe: _______________________________ 
________________________________________ 

✔

✔

✔
✔ ✔

The majority of the site contains agricultural land (row crops) with residential development in the northern portion of the site, ditch features in the central
portion of the site, a stream along the southern boundary of the site, and wetlands in the northwestern and southeastern portions of the site.

0 0.97 +0.97

0 0 0

0.55 9.95 +9.4

17.05 0.00 -17.05

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

Solar Array (Racking Footprint) 0 6.68 +6.68
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c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation?  Yes  No 
i. If Yes: explain:  __________________________________________________________________________________________

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed  Yes  No 
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,  
i. Identify Facilities:

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam?  Yes  No 
If Yes: 

i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
Dam height:    _________________________________  feet 
Dam length:    _________________________________  feet 
Surface area:    _________________________________  acres 
Volume impounded:  _______________________________ gallons OR acre-feet

ii. Dam=s existing hazard classification:  _________________________________________________________________________
iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility,  Yes  No 
or does the project site adjoin  property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?

If Yes:
i. Has the facility been formally closed?  Yes   No 

If yes, cite sources/documentation: _______________________________________________________________________
ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities: __________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin  Yes  No  
property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes:
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

h. Potential contamination history.  Has there been a reported spill at the proposed  project site, or have any  Yes   No  
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?

If Yes: 
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site  Yes  No 

Remediation database?  Check all that apply:
  Yes – Spills Incidents database       Provide DEC ID number(s): ________________________________ 
  Yes – Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s): ________________________________ 
  Neither database 

ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:_______________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database?  Yes  No 
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):  ______________________________________________________________________________ 
iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses?  Yes  No  
If yes, DEC site ID number: ____________________________________________________________________________
Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):    ____________________________________
Describe any use limitations: ___________________________________________________________________________
Describe any engineering controls: _______________________________________________________________________
Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place?  Yes  No 
Explain: ____________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

E.2.  Natural Resources On or Near Project Site
a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site?  ________________ feet

b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site?  Yes  No 
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings?  __________________%

c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site:  ___________________________  __________% 
 ___________________________  __________% 
____________________________  __________% 

d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site?  Average:  _________ feet

e. Drainage status of project site soils:   Well Drained: _____% of ite
  Moderately Well Drained: _____% of site 
  Poorly Drained _____% of ite

f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes:   0-10%: _____% of site  
  10-15%: _____% of site 
  15% or greater: _____% of site 

g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site?  Yes  No 
 If Yes, describe: _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

h. Surface water features.
i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers,  Yes  No 

ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site?  Yes  No 

If Yes to either i or ii, continue.  If No, skip to E.2.i.
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal,  Yes  No 

state or local agency?
iv. For each identified wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information

Streams: Name ____________________________________________ Classification _______________________ 
Lakes or Ponds: Name ____________________________________________ Classification _______________________
Wetlands: Name ____________________________________________ Approximate Size ___________________ 
Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC) _____________________________

v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS water quality-impaired  Yes  No 
waterbodies?

If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired: _____________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway?  Yes  No 

j. Is the project site in the 100 year Floodplain?  Yes  No 

k. Is the project site in the 500 year Floodplain?  Yes  No 

l. Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. Name of aquifer:  _________________________________________________________________________________________

>6.5

✔

136A-Kendaia silt loam, 0-3% slope 67.5

790B-Conesus silt loam, 3-8% slope 32.5

0.5-2

✔ 32.5
✔ 67.5

✔ 100.0

✔

✔

✔

✔

Stream C (delineated by C&S)

NYS Wetland NYS Wetland (in a...
RO-15

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

Principal Aquifer
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m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:  ______________________________ 
______________________________ _______________________________ ______________________________ 
______________________________ _______________________________ ______________________________ 

n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation): _____________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Source(s) of description  or evaluation: ________________________________________________________________________
iii. Extent of community/habitat:

Currently:    ______________________  acres 
Following completion of project as proposed:   _____________________   acres
Gain or loss (indicate + or -):  ______________________ acres 

o. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as    Yes  No 
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of  Yes  No
special concern?

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing?  Yes  No  
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use: ___________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

E.3.  Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site
a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to  Yes  No 

Agriculture and  Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?
If Yes,  provide county plus district name/number:  _________________________________________________________________  

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present?  Yes  No 
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?  ___________________________________________________________________________

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):  _________________________________________________________________________________

c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National  Yes  No 
Natural Landmark?

If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark:     Biological Community            Geological Feature
ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent: ___________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
  ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. CEA name: _____________________________________________________________________________________________
ii. Basis for designation: _____________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Designating agency and date:  ______________________________________________________________________________

Grasshopper sparrow Gray squirrel Groundhog

Bobolink Eastern cottontail
Mourning dove White-tail deer

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
Prime farmland: 5.7 acres; Prime farmland if drained: 11.9 acres

USDA NRCS Web Soil Survey

✔

✔
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e. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district  Yes  No
which is listed on of Historic P

 of Historic Places?
If Yes:

i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource:    Archaeological Site    Historic Building or District     
ii. Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

f. Is the project site, or any portion of  it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for  Yes  No 
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site?  Yes  No 
If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):  _______________________________________________________________________________
ii. Basis for identification:   ___________________________________________________________________________________

h.  Yes  No the project site any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local
scenic or aesthetic resource?

If Yes:
i. Identify resource: _________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.):  ___________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Distance between project and resource: _____________________ miles.
i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers  Yes  No 

Program 6 NYCRR 666?
If Yes:

i. Identify the name of the river and its designation: ________________________________________________________________
ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 666?  Yes  No 

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them. 

G. Verification
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant/Sponsor Name ___________________________________ Date_______________________________________ 

Signature________________________________________________ Title_______________________________________ 

✔

✔

✔

✔

Rome Wildlife Management Area, Bellamy Harbor Park, Riverside Park, Haselton Park, Franklyn Field, Vogel Park, Wiggins Par

Wildlife Management Area, Public Park
<5

✔

Bryan A. Bayer, C&S Engineers, Inc. January 5, 2024

PRINT FORM

Department Manager, Planning & Compliance



EEAF Mapper Summary Report Friday, October 6, 2023 11:15 AM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist 
project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental 
assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked in the EAF are 
answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF 
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks.  Although 
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data available to 
DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order 
to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is not a 
substitute for agency determinations.

B.i.i [Coastal or Waterfront Area] No

B.i.ii [Local Waterfront Revitalization Area] No

C.2.b. [Special Planning District] Yes - Digital mapping data are not available for all Special Planning Districts. 
Refer to EAF Workbook.

C.2.b. [Special Planning District - Name] NYS Heritage Areas:Mohawk Valley Heritage Corridor

E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - 
Potential Contamination History]

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF 
Workbook.

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - 
Listed]

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF 
Workbook.

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - 
Environmental Site Remediation Database]

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF 
Workbook.

E.1.h.iii [Within 2,000' of  DEC Remediation 
Site]

No

E.2.g [Unique Geologic Features] No

E.2.h.i [Surface Water Features] Yes

E.2.h.ii  [Surface Water Features] Yes

E.2.h.iii [Surface Water Features] Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and 
waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Wetlands 
Name]

NYS Wetland

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Wetlands 
Size]

NYS Wetland (in acres):85.8

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - DEC 
Wetlands Number]

RO-15

E.2.h.v [Impaired Water Bodies] No

E.2.i. [Floodway] No

E.2.j. [100 Year Floodplain] No

1Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



E.2.k. [500 Year Floodplain] No

E.2.l. [Aquifers] Yes

E.2.l. [Aquifer Names] Principal Aquifer

E.2.n. [Natural Communities] No

E.2.o. [Endangered or Threatened Species] No

E.2.p. [Rare Plants or Animals] No

E.3.a. [Agricultural District] No

E.3.c. [National Natural Landmark] No

E.3.d [Critical Environmental Area] No

E.3.e. [National or State Register of Historic 
Places or State Eligible Sites]

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF 
Workbook.

E.3.f. [Archeological Sites] Yes

E.3.i. [Designated River Corridor] No

2Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



























1-Jul-25
COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Required by §859-a(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC
149 Water St, Suite 302, Norwalk CT

Description of Project: 4.20 MW AC  Solar Facility
5792 Old Oneida Rd. Rome Outer District

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of 
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant: Applicant is a subsidiary of Emeren US, LLC, whose
parent company, Emeren Group Ltd., is publicly traded on the NYSE

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced Goodfinch will purchase and operate the facility
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project: Dec-25

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds
Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement

X Real Property Tax Abatement

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY



C

Project Costs
Land Acquisition -$                     
Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION -$                     
Existing Building(S) RENOVATOIN -$                     
NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION -$                     
Installation Costs 5,715,900$           
Site Preparation/Parking Lot Construction
Machinery & Equipment (other than furniture) 3,118,500$           
Furniture & Fixtures -$                     
Architectural & Engineering 120,000$              
Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel) 50,000$                
Financial (all costs related to project financing)
Permits 5,000$                  
Other See appl.(decomm & Interconnect)
Agency Fee 45,047$                
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT 9,054,447$           

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount:
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs 0 -$                                  
Created Jobs FTE  (over three years) 0 -$                                  
Retained Jobs 0 -$                                  

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant -$                     
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25,000$                
Average of Construction Jobs 32,000$                

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 15 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 29

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)
Total Earnings Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                  
Existing -$                     -$                                  

Indirect Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                  
Existing 0 0

Construction - only one year
Person Years 914,544$              38,868$                            

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Yr Period) 914,544$              38,868$                            

Average Salary of these 
Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% -$                                  -$                        
Existing 0.36 -$                                  -$                        

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 -$                                  -$                        
Existing 0.36 -$                                  -$                        

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 329,236$                          32,100$                  

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES 329,236$                          32,100$                  

Municipality
35.623048$                  VernonVeronaSherr 24-25
13.524041$                  Rome Outer Dist. 25
10.069998$                  Oneida 25

Total Rate: 59.2170867
Real Property Taxes Paid: -$                     

COSTS: IDA BENEFITS 0

Real Property Taxes Abatement 2,481,351$                       
Mortgage Tax Abated (.75%) 42,746$                            
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Construction Period (8.75%) -$                                  

Total: 2,524,097$                       

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: INCL JOINT FIRE
Tax Rate for County:

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.
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Transcript Document No. [   ] 
 
 

Inducement Resolution 
NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC Facility 

 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY 
OFFICIAL ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH A LEASE-
LEASEBACK TRANSACTION FOR THE BENEFIT OF NY 
ROME OLD ONEIDA SOLAR, LLC, ACCEPTING AN 
APPLICATION, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT, 
AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC 
HEARING, AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS, NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed 
on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida 
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in construction of an approximately 4.2 megawatt AC 
ground mounted photovoltaic solar facility consisting of racking and foundations, 
inverters and transformers, necessary electrical interconnections and all improvements 
and connections required to transfer and deliver generation offsite, access road, 
security fencing and gating, safety signage and solar photo voltaic (“PV”) panels 
(collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 20± acre portion of a 144± acre parcel 
of land located at 5792 Old Oneida Road, City of Rome, County of Oneida (the “Land”), 
all for the purpose of furthering the mission of New York State renewable energy goals 
by providing renewable energy for consumers in the region under the New York State 
Community Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are referred to collectively 
as the “Facility” and the construction of the Improvements is referred to as the 
“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land is leased by James H. Elliot (the “Owner”) to the Company 
pursuant to an Option and Lease Agreement dated June 2, 2022 (the “Ground Lease”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency, pursuant to 
Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York and Chapter 372 of 
the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York, as may be amended from time to time 
(collectively, the “Act”) and the Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company 
pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”); and 
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 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility, to promote the development of 
renewable energy projects to support  New York State’s renewable  energy  goals  as  
may  be established or amended from time to time, and to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the 
State of New York; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Facility constitutes a “community solar project” as defined by the 
New York State Energy and Research Development Authority (“NYSERDA”) and a 
“renewable energy project” as defined in the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 18, 2020 as amended on April 30, 2021 and March 
25, 2022 the Agency adopted a uniform tax exemption policy with respect to community 
solar projects (the “Solar UTEP”), in which it identifies terms of financial assistance for 
community solar projects and the related project eligibility criteria; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to 
the Company in connection with the Project in the form of exemptions from mortgage 
recording taxes and provision for a fixed payment in lieu of taxes (the “PILOT 
Payments”) to be made by the Company to the Agency for a period of twenty-five years, 
during which time the Company shall make PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 per MW-
AC of nameplate capacity with an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during 
year 2 through year 25, which will be allocated among the affected tax jurisdictions in 
the same proportion that taxes would have been paid but for the Agency’s involvement 
(the “Financial Assistance”), which Financial Assistance is consistent with the Solar 
UTEP, and which will be more particularly set forth in a final authorizing resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon representations made by the Company in its Application 
for Financial Assistance dated July 1, 2025 (the “Application”) the value of the Financial 
Assistance is described as follows: 
 

• Real property tax abatement   $2,481,351.00 (approximately) 
• Mortgage recording tax exemption $42,945.50 (not to exceed) 

 
 WHEREAS, prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback transaction, and the 
granting of Financial Assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so that all 
persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the Financial Assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a lease-
leaseback transaction, and the granting of any Financial Assistance, and such notice 
(together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as 
Exhibit A; and 
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 WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to 
representations by the Company that the proposed lease-leaseback transaction is either 
an inducement to the Company to maintain and expand the Facility in the County or is 
necessary to maintain the competitive position of the Company in its industry; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Financial Assistance is conditioned upon the Company’s 
representations that the project will be completed substantially in accordance with the 
project that is contained in the Application (the “Project Obligation”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation 
of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency 
constitutes a “State Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Facility may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared and submitted to 
the Agency an Environmental Assessment Form and related documents (the 
“Questionnaire”) with respect to the Facility, a copy of which is on file at the office of the 
Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rome Planning Board acted as lead agency for the 
purposes of SEQRA, and, prior to the granting of Financial Assistance, the Agency will 
adopt the determination and findings of the lead agency for purposes of SEQRA. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that: 
 
Section 1. (a) The Agency accepts the Application submitted by the Company. 
 
  (b) The acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facility and the 

Agency’s financial assistance therefor, will promote job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and the economic welfare 
of the inhabitants of the County and the people of the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living by supporting New York 
State’s renewable energy  goals, and thereby serve the public 
purposes of the Act and the same is, therefore, approved. 

 
  (b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 

a lease-leaseback transaction for the purpose of providing Financial 
Assistance for the acquisition, construction and equipping of the 
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Facility, as reflected in the Application and as amended from time 
to time prior to the closing of the lease-leaseback transaction. 

 
  (c) Based upon representations made by the Company in the 

Application, the Agency determines that the Project is eligible for 
Financial Assistance under the criteria described in the Solar 
UTEP. 

 
Section 2.  The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 

substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and among the 
Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the lease-
leaseback transaction, and the development of the Facility (the 
"Agreement") is hereby approved.  The Chairman of the Agency is 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver 
the Agreement, with such changes in terms and form as the 
Chairman shall approve. The execution thereof by the Chairman 
shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
Section 3.  The Agency shall assist the Company in the acquisition, 

construction and equipping of the Facility and will provide the 
Financial Assistance with respect thereto subject to (i) obtaining all 
necessary governmental approvals, (ii) approval of the members of 
the Company, (iii) approval of the members of the Agency, 
(iv) receipt by the members of all comments submitted to the 
Agency at the Hearing, (v) agreement by the Agency and the 
Company upon mutually acceptable terms and conditions for the 
Leaseback Agreement and other documentation usual and 
customary to transactions of this nature, (vi) the condition that there 
are no changes in New York State Law which prohibit or limit the 
Agency from fulfilling its obligation and commitment as herein set 
forth to enter into the lease-leaseback transaction, (v) receipt of an 
executed Host Community Agreement between the Company and 
the City of Rome (the “Host Community”), (viii) a decommissioning 
plan acceptable to the Agency and the Host Community, (ix) proof 
that provision has been made to reserve funds for 
decommissioning of the Project, and (x) payment by the Company 
of the Agency's transaction fee and the fees and disbursements of 
bond counsel or transaction counsel, more particularly described in 
the Inducement Agreement. 

 
Section 4.  The Agency is hereby authorized and directed to schedule the 

Hearing, so that the Agency may receive comments from all 
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interested parties on the financial assistance contemplated by the 
Agency and the Financial Assistance requested by the Company. 

 
Section 5.  The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 

Transaction Counsel in connection with the lease-leaseback 
transaction. 

 
Section 6.  Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 

authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to 
prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to 
effect the lease-leaseback transaction. 

 
Section 7.   The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 

(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to 
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 8.  This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    : ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
 I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution 
and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 
 
 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on 
July 25, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following 
members were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 
 
 
Other Attendees:   
 
 
 

 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
 The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to 
and approved at such meeting. 
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of 
said meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend in person and public 
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all 
respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the 
meeting. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on _____, 2025. 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of 
the New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on August __, 2025, at ________ 
a.m., local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York in 
connection with the following matters: 
  
 NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of 
NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf 
of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida 
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in construction of an approximately 4.2 megawatt AC 
ground mounted photovoltaic solar facility consisting of racking and foundations, 
inverters and transformers, necessary electrical interconnections and all 
improvements and connections required to transfer and deliver generation offsite, 
access road, security fencing and gating, safety signage and solar photo voltaic 
(“PV”) panels (collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 20± acre portion of a 
144± acre parcel of land located at 5792 Old Oneida Road, City of Rome, County of 
Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the mission of New York State 
renewable energy goals by providing renewable energy for consumers in the region 
under the New York State Community Solar Program (the Land and the 
Improvements are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of the 
Improvements is referred to as the “Project”). The Facility will be initially operated 
and/or managed by the Company. James H. Elliot (the “Owner”) owns the Land and 
leases it to the Company, and the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency. 
 
 The Agency contemplates providing financial assistance to the Company in 
the form of exemptions from mortgage recording taxes and reduction of real property 
taxes for a period of twenty-five years, during which time the Company shall make 
PILOT Payments equal to $10,000.00 per MW-AC of nameplate capacity with an 
annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 2 through year 25, which 
financial assistance is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy 
(Community Solar Policy), to be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing 
Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions 
described herein. 
 
 A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear 
and accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to 
either the proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of 
the Facility. Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or 
electronically prior to the Public Hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be 
transcribed and posted on the Agency’ s website together with a video recording of 
the hearing. A copy of the Application for Financial Assistance filed by the Company 
with the Agency, including an analysis of the costs and benefits of the proposed 
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Project, is available for public inspection at the offices of the Agency, 584 Phoenix 
Drive, Rome, New York and on the Agency’s website. 
 
     ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
     DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Dated:  July __, 2025  By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director  
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EXHIBIT B 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CONDUCTED ON AUGUST __, 2025 

 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Lease-Leaseback Transaction 
NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC Facility 

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at _______ a.m. 

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing. 

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows: 

NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of NY Rome Old Oneida Solar, LLC, and/or an entity formed 
or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the 
“Company”) has applied to the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in which the Agency 
will assist in construction of an approximately 4.2 megawatt AC ground 
mounted photovoltaic solar facility consisting of racking and 
foundations, inverters and transformers, necessary electrical 
interconnections and all improvements and connections required to 
transfer and deliver generation offsite, access road, security fencing 
and gating, safety signage and solar photo voltaic (“PV”) panels 
(collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 20± acre portion of a 
144± acre parcel of land located at 5792 Old Oneida Road, City of 
Rome, County of Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose of furthering 
the mission of New York State renewable energy goals by providing 
renewable energy for consumers in the region under the New York 
State Community Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are 
referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of the 
Improvements is referred to as the “Project”). The Facility will be 
initially operated and/or managed by the Company. James H. Elliot 
(the “Owner”) owns the Land and leases it to the Company, and the 
Company will lease the Facility to the Agency. 
 
The Agency contemplates providing financial assistance to the 
Company in the form of exemptions from mortgage recording taxes 
and reduction of real property taxes for a period of twenty-five years, 
during which time the Company shall make PILOT Payments equal to 
$10,000.00 per MW-AC of nameplate capacity with an annual increase 
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of two percent (2%) applied during year 2 through year 25, which 
financial assistance is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy (Community Solar Policy), to be more particularly 
described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the 
Agency prior to the closing of the transactions described herein. 
 

4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views. 

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at _________ a.m. 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 Mark Kaucher 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on August 
__, 2025 at ______ a.m. local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, New York, 
with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true 
and correct copy of the minutes in connection with such matter. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) pursuant to Title 1 of Article 18-A of the New 
York General Municipal Law, the hearing was open to the general public to attend, 
and public notice of the time and place of said hearing was duly given in accordance 
with such Title 1 of Article 18-A, (ii) the hearing in all respects were duly held, and 
(iii) members of the public had an opportunity to be heard. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025. 
 

___________________________________ 
Secretary 

































 

 

Division of Environmental Remediation, Region 6 
207 Genesee Street, Utica, NY 13501-2885 |  dec.ny.gov  |  Phone 315-793-2554 

 

 

KATHY HOCHUL 
Governor 

AMANDA LEFTON 
Commissioner 

July 9, 2025       
                                       
                                                              Via Email Only: luke@lewiscustomhomesinc.com  
Lewiston Clinton Townhomes, LLC 
194 Clinton Road 
New Hartford, New York 13413 
 
Attn: Luke Lewis 
 
RE:  Spill No. 2501551 

Lewiston Clinton Townhomes, LLC 
10 Taylor Avenue 
Kirkland (T), Oneida County 

 
Luke Lewis: 
 
The Department of Environmental Conservation (Department) has completed its file 
review for Spill No. 2501551. We have received and reviewed the Spill Closure Report 
dated July 1, 2025, submitted on your behalf by Leader Professional Services, Inc. 
(Leader). 
 
Leader oversaw the removal of petroleum-contaminated soils on May 15, May 30, and 
June 2, 2025. As part of this remedial effort, 253.87 tons of contaminated soil were 
transported to the Oneida-Herkimer Solid Waste Authority’s Ava Landfill for proper 
disposal. Copies of the disposal receipts were included in the report. 
 
Confirmatory soil samples submitted by Leader indicate that all areas of the excavation 
were adequately addressed, with the exception of one location identified as ROW-1-
TAYLOR. This finding is consistent with field observations made by Department staff 
during the June 2, 2025 site visit. The remaining contamination is located beneath the 
roadway in the right-of-way (ROW) and was determined to be inaccessible for further 
excavation, as confirmed through communications between the Department and Dawson 
Tait of Leader. 
 
Based on the information provided and site conditions, the Department has concluded that 
no further remedial action is required at this time, and the spill will be closed Not Meeting 
Standards, effective July 8, 2025. 
 
Nothing contained herein shall be construed as barring, diminishing, or in any way limiting 
the Department’s authority under the Navigation Law or the Environmental Conservation 
Law, including the authority to require additional remedial work, if necessary.  
 



If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me at (315) 793-2520, 
or by email at richard.furlong@dec.ny.gov.

Richard A. Furlong Jr.
Environmental Program Specialist 1
Region 6 – Utica

RAF/cmd

ec: Dawson Tait, Project Scientist, Leader (dtait@leaderlink.com) 
Elizabeth C. Tantillo, Mayor of Clinton (mayor@villageofclintonny.org) 
David Brigida, Planning Board Chair (dbrigidaplanning@gmail.com)
David Storandt, RSE, Region 6, Watertown
Scott Reichinger, AE, Region 6, Utica
DECDOCS Spill No. 2501551
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Village of Clinton Planning Board 

Clinton, NY 13323 

Lumbard Memorial Hall 

June 25, 2025 

Members Present     Members Absent 

David Brigida, Chairman    Michael Lane 

Rachel Bartunek 

Chris Evans, Alternate 

Je  Swincha

Rachel McNamara 

Also Present 

Melinda Alber ne, Project Engineer 

Tim Hogan 

Aneesa Lewis 

R. Luke Lewis 

Josh Lewis 

Chris Calidonna 

Regina Mar ni 

Brendan Marris 

Mike Lewis 

Howie Scha er 

Mr. Brigida called the mee ng of the Clinton Village Planning Board to order at 7:02 p.m. 

Mr. Brigida welcomed everyone to the public mee ng regarding Lewiston and Clinton Cross 
Roads Project.  He introduced the other members of the board and stated that the board is 
composed of volunteers that support the Village.  He also introduced Melinda Alber ne the 
Project Engineer who has been most helpful in this endeavor.   

June 25, 2025 

Village of Clinton Planning Board
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Mr. Brigida gave an overview of the planning board process, du es and status.  He then asked 
Luke Lewis to share some details of the project.  He said that ques ons would be answered and 
that Mr. Lewis would take ques ons during his presenta on and at the end of the mee ng.  Mr. 
Brigida stated that the Planning Board is the organiza on that approves building codes.  The 
Board works with the building department to ensure codes are met and it is not the 
organiza on that approves any devia ons in zoning or codes.  That is the Zoning Board of 
Appeals.   

The Planning Board works with many organiza ons at the local, county and state level to ensure 
all village laws and ordinances, county and state regula ons are considered.  All these 
organiza ons are informed of the project, the scope of the project and o ered the opportunity 
to comment and/or raise issues with the project.  The organiza ons that have been contacted  
are: 

Oneida County Board of Planning 

Town of Kirkland Police Department 

NYS DOT region 2 

NYS Division of Historic Preserva on 

Clinton Fire Department 

Clinton Village Board 

NYS Home and Community Renewal 

Town of Kirkland Planning Codes and Zoning 

Town of Kirkland Highway Superintendent 

NYS Department of Environmental Conserva on 

Village of Clinton Public Works and Water Department 

Village of Clinton Waste Water Treatment 

Village of Clinton Engineer 

Village Legal 

No issues have been raised by these organiza ons.  Mr. Brigida stated that all Planning Board 
mee ngs are public mee ngs to listen and learn about the project.  All documents, drawings 
have been in the Village O ce for anyone’s review from the beginning of the project.  The 
minutes of the mee ngs are published on the website.   
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The Planning does have some leeway to request special considera ons and addi ons to a 
project.  In this project the board has requested: 

1.  Lewis Construc on install new and addi onal sidewalks along Taylor Avenue to U ca 
Street at their expense.  The Village has agreed to maintain this new sec on. 

2. Mr. Lewis has been asked to install ligh ng on the building that be er meets the historic 
nature of the village. 

3. It was agreed that there should no vehicle entrance or exit to U ca Street from the 
apartments where there was a driveway and that the corridor will be a walkway with 
downwards poin ng ligh ng and new landscaping. 

4. Lewis was asked to provide more architecture along the fencing on Taylor Avenue. 
5. Lewis was asked that major construc on noise and dust be held to a minimum and a er 

8:00 a.m. as best as possible. 

Mr. Lewis spoke about his project.  He said there will be 6 buildings with 34 units (4 
buildings with 6 units and 2 buildings with 5 units).  Only 2 trees will be taken down.  The 
project has been in progress for 9 months.  Most neighbors have been welcoming to the 
project.  A total of 6 buildings were taken down. 

Mr. Lewis has built other buildings in the Town, and they have been well maintained.  He has 
been building apartments for over 30 years in the area and is looking forward to the project. 

Mr. Scha er, a member of DRI, spoke enthusias cally about the project sta ng that this was 
an opportunity to be a real neighborhood.  He asked if a playground or picnic table was 
considered or even making the buildings di erent colors.   

With the public sec on of the mee ng adjourned, the Planning Board mee ng con nued. 

The agenda was now to vote on the nal site plans.  Mr. Brigida said he had received all the 
informa on from the agencies and the engineers.  Final stamped site plans were approved 
by the Board at the public hearing dated 5/16/25 to include the revised sheets C 2.3, C. 2.4 
and D 1.0 dated 6/16/15 and drawn by Timothy M. Hogan, P. E., Hogan Engineering, P.C.  
There was a resolu on made for nal site plan approval from the agencies and engineers 
and it was seconded by Mr. Je  Swincha .  All the members present voted in favor.  Said 
resolu on passed.  Ms. Alber ne will contact with condi ons to the nal site approval.   

The mee ng was adjourned at 7:28 p.m. 

The next mee ng of the Village of Clinton Planning Board will be on July 14, 2025 at 7:00 pm 

Respec ully submi ed, 

Carol F. Hernandez, Secretary to the Village of Clinton Planning Board 

The agenda was now to vote on the nal site plans.  Mr. Brigida said he had received all the 
informa on from the agencies and the engineers.  Final stamped site plans were approved
by the Board at the public hearing dated 5/16/25 to include the revised sheets C 2.3, C. 2.4 
and D 1.0 dated 6/16/15 and drawn by Timothy M. Hogan, P. E., Hogan Engineering, P.C. 
There was a resolu on made for nal site plan approval from the agencies and engineers
and it was seconded by Mr. Je  Swincha .  All the members present voted in favor.  Said 
resolu on passed.  Ms. Alber ne will contact with condi ons to the nal site approval. 
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SEQR Resolution 
Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC Facility 

 
 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF LEWISTON CLINTON 
TOWNHOMES LLC WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT 
EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

 
WHEREAS, Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 

principals of Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed 
on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida 
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in construction of 34 market-rate townhouses in six 
buildings, together with parking lots, sidewalks, landscaping and all infrastructure and 
amenities to service the same (collectively, the Improvements”) situated on four parcels 
of land measuring 3± acres in the aggregate located at 137 McBride Avenue, Village of 
Clinton, Town of Kirkland, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); and acquisition and 
installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all for the purpose of 
providing housing within the community for surrounding employers, and to enhance 
talent recruitment and economic development in the region (the Land, the 
Improvements and the Equipment are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the 
construction and equipping of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 

Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the construction and equipping 
of the Facility may have a "significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted term is 
defined in the SEQR Act and the Regulations) and therefore require the preparation of 
an environmental impact statement; and 
 

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the construction, and 
equipping of the Facility may have a significant effect upon the environment, the 
Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency a long environmental assessment 
form (the "EAF"), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 
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WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Agency has reviewed the Planning Board 
Resolution/Public hearing dated June 25, 2025 and the negative declaration dated July 
11, 2025 (collectively, the “Planning Board Review”) by the Town of Kirkland Planning 
Board (the “Lead Agency”), copies of which were presented to and reviewed by the 
Agency at this meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined the EAF and 

the Planning Board Review in order to make a determination as to the potential 
environmental significance of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the EAF, the 
Planning Board Review, and based further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area 
surrounding the Facility and such further investigation of the Facility and its 
environmental effects as the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the 
following findings and determinations with respect to the Facility: 
 

(A) The Facility is as described in the Application and the EAF; 
 

(B) The Facility constitutes an "Unlisted Action" (as defined in 
the Regulations); 

 
(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 

noted in the EAF for the Facility, and none are known to the Agency; 
 

(D) The Facility will not result in (i) substantial adverse change in 
existing air quality; ground or surface water quality or quantity, traffic or noise 
levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; or a substantial increase 
in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; (ii) the removal 
or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna; substantial interference 
with the movement of a resident or migratory fish or wildlife species; impacts on a 
significant habitat area; substantial adverse impacts on threatened or 
endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or (iii) 
other significant adverse impacts to natural resources;  

 
(E) The Facility will not affect a critical environmental area as 

designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g);  
 

(F) The Facility will not conflict with the community's current 
plans or goals as officially approved or adopted; 
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(G) The Facility will not result in the impairment of the character 

or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or aesthetic 
resources or of existing community or neighborhood character;  

 
(H) The Facility will not result in a major change in the use of 

either the quantity or type of energy; 
 

(I) The Facility will not result in the creation of a hazard to 
human health; 

 
(J) The Facility will not result in a substantial change in the use, 

or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses; 

 
(K) The Facility will not result in encouraging or attracting of a 

large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, compared 
to the number of people who would come to such place absent the action; 

 
(L) The Facility will not result in the creation of a material 

demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences;  

 
(M) The Facility will not result in changes in two or more 

elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 
environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and 

 
(N) The Facility will not result in two or more related actions 

undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or would have 
a significant impact on the environment, but when considered cumulatively would 
meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 617.7(c).   

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby concurs with the determinations and 

findings of the Lead Agency and determines that the Facility will not have a significant 
impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the preparation of an 
environmental impact statement with respect to the Facility.  As a result, the Agency has 
prepared a negative declaration with respect to the Facility. 
 

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 
file in the Agency's records a negative declaration with respect to the Facility (said 
negative declaration to be substantially in the form and substantially to the effect of the 
negative declaration attached hereto). 
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Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
                   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on July 
25, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following members 
were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 
 
 
Other Attendees:   
 
 
 

 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
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 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
time, location and call-in information for said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in 
all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
            Shawna Papale, Secretary 
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TERMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
Board Summary For July 25, 2025 

Company: Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC, 194 Clinton Rd, New Hartford 

Description of Project: Market Rate Rental Housing Units 
Construction of two, five dwelling unit buildings and 4, six dwelling unit buildings for 
a total of 34 new dwelling units in the vicinity of 137 McBride Ave., Taylor Ave and 
Utica Street in the Village of Clinton.  The attached project summary references a 
number of site preparation efforts that have already been undertaken including 
building demolition and contaminated soil remediation.  The project will not involve 
the abandonment of a facility. 
Total Project Cost: $ 8,944,500 

Request for Financial Assistance 

Sales tax exemption valued at $ 337,750. 

Mortgage recording tax exemption valued at $ 50,063. 

PILOT Benefit estimated at $ 248,722. 

Total Estimated Benefit Value: $ 636,535. 

PILOT Description:   10 year- Housing/Tier 1 Exemption Schedule – Housing Score: 70 
points. Percentage PILOT. Consistent with UTEP-Housing.  

Affected Tax Jurisdictions: County of Oneida, Town of Kirkland, Village of Clinton, 
Clinton Central School. 

Current real estate taxes or current PILOT on property $ 18,800± 

Company Obligations for Financial Assistance 

1. Completion of the project.

2. 1 FTE created within 3 years of project completion



(1) UUpdated:

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
584 Phoenix Drive 

Rome, New York 13441-1405
338-0393 telephone

338-5694 fax

Project Name

Date of Submission

Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director

LEWISTON CLINTON TOWNHOMES LLC

07/08/2025



Important Notes to Applicant: 

Upon the submission of this application to the OCIDA, the application becomes a public 
document. Be advised that any action brought before the Agency is public information. All 
agendas for the OCIDA are issued publicly prior to the full agency meeting. Upon the submission 
of this application to the OCIDA, the application becomes a public document and OCIDA is 
required by law to post on its website and make available to the public this Application and 
supporting materials. If when completing this Application, you deem any information to be 
specifically exempted from disclosure under Article Six of the Public Officers Law, please answer 
the question “This information is deemed to be exempt from disclosure under Article Six of the 
Public Officers Law and is submitted on the attached confidential addendum.” It is acceptable to 
submit any confidential addendum electronically as a .pdf file separate from the application, but 
any confidential addendum must still be submitted with the hard copy of the full application 
(see Page 1).  Please answer any such questions on a separate Addendum titled, “Confidential 
and Protected by Article Six of the Public Officers Law.” If OCIDA is challenged to produce any 
information the Applicant identifies as protected, the Applicant will be required at its sole cost 
to defend such assertion on behalf of OCIDA. 

The information requested by this application is necessary to determine the eligibility of your 
project for OCIDA benefits. Please answer all questions and respond “Not Applicable”, “NA”, or 
“none” where appropriate. If you’re response is an estimate, please indicate so. Attach 
additional sheets if more space is needed for a response. All applications must include a 
completed and signed NYS SEQR form and Cost Benefit Analysis form (please consult with 
OCIDA) before the application is considered complete. 

By signing and submitting this Application, the Applicant acknowledges that it received a copy 
of the Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and the Oneida County IDA Penalty for Failure to Meet 
Employment Levels as adopted by the Agency and Agency Memorandums pertaining to the 
benefits of projects financed through the Agency. 

A project financed through the Agency involves the preparation and execution of significant 
legal documents. Please consult with an attorney before signing any documents in connection 
with the proposed project. You will receive an engagement letter from the OCIDA legal counsel. 
You will be asked to sign the engagement letter acknowledging you will be responsible for all 
legal fees of OCIDA legal counsel and that you understand the process. Should you not close 
and legal services have been rendered by the OCIDA legal counsel, Applicant will be responsible 
for those costs. 

If your project requires a public hearing, a representative of the applicant is required to be 
present. A date will be coordinated by the OCIDA legal counsel. 

If you have any questions how to calculate the OCIDA’s application fee please refer to the 
enclosed Memorandum to Companies -Sale Leaseback Transactions or contact the OCIDA. 

(2)



(3)

Part I: Applicant Information 

Note: In responding to the following questions, please keep in mind that the Applicant will  
be party to all of the documents and is the individual or if entity will be formed which will  
receive the actual financial assistance from the Agency. 

Applicant

1(a)  Applicant’s Legal Name:

1(b) Principal Address: 

1(c) Telephone/Facsimile Numbers:

1(d)  Email Address: 

1(e)

1(f) Contact Person: 

1(g)  Is the Applicant a [ ] Corporation:
If es, Public [  ] Private [ ]
If public, on which exchange is it listed?

[ ] Subchapter S 
[ ]  Sole Proprietorship
[ ]  General Partnership
[ ] Limited Partnership 
[ ] Limited Liability Corporation/Partnership 
[ ] Single-Member LLC (name and EIN below): 

Name

[ ] DISC 
[ ] Other(specify)  

1(h) State of Organization (if applicable)

LEWISTON CLINTON TOWNHOMES LLC

194 CLINTON RD.

NEW HARTFORD, NY 

315 724-0562

MARK@LEWISCUSTOMHOMESINC.COM

LUKE@LEWISCUSTOMHOMESINC.COM

LUKE LEWIS

LEWISTON CLINTON TOWNHOMES LLC

331815178

NEW YORK

✔



(4)

Applicant’s Stockholders, Directors and Officers  Partners

2(a) Provide the following information with respect to with 15% or more in
equity holdings

Percentage of 
Name Address Ownership 

2(b)  Is the Applicant, or any of the individuals listed in 2(a) above, related directly or indirectly  
to any other entity by more than 50% common ownership? , indicate name
of such entity and the relationship.

2(c) Is the Applicant affiliated with any other entity, directly or indirectly, other than as listed in 
the response to 2(a) above? , please indicate name and relationship of
such other entity and the address thereof:

Robert L Lewis                        Kellogg Rd. Clinton NY                                               25%
Michael A. Lewis                     South St. Clinton NY                                                   25%
Daniel A,. Lewis                       royal lane Pierre, SD                                                 25%
Mark C. Lewis                          12175 6th St east Treasure Island, FL                     25%

LEWIS CUSTOM HOMES INC.                                   OWNERS AND OWNERSHIP PERCENTAGE  ALL 
SAME
LEWITON AT WHITE ST LLC                                       AS 2(A)
LEWISTON AT CLINTON ST LLC
LEWIS BROTHER LLC
LB CONSTRUCTION LLC
LS SOLAR LLC
SIWEL INC.

SEE RESPONSE TO 2(B) ABOVE

✔

✔



(5) 

Applicant’s Counsel and Accountant

33(a) Applicant’s Attorney

Name/Title: 

Firm: 

Address: 

Telephone/Fax: 

Email: 

3(b) Applicant’s Accountant

Name/Title: 

Firm: 

Address: 

Telephone/Fax: 

Email: 

Business Description

4(a) Describe the nature of your business and principal products and/or services. 
Attach additional sheets if necessary.

Daniel Mannion

Hancock Estabrook LLP

100 Madison Street

Syracuse, NY 13202

315 565-4500

dmannion@hancocklaw.com

John L. Savage, CPA

2077 Hanover Rd.

Waterville,NY 13480

315 725-4333

info@johnsavage.com

LEWISTON PROPERTIES THROUGH ITS AFILATED COMPANIES DEVELOPES, BUILDS, OWNS AND MANAGES 
APARTMENT COMPLEXES IN CENTRAL NEW YORK, PRIMARILY IN THE TOWN OF KIRKLAND AREA. WE HAVE BEEN IN 
BUSINESS FOR OVER 25 YEARS. WE TAKE PRIDE IN PROVIDING THE BEST TENANT SERVICE IN OUR MARKET. WE 
CURRENTLY OWN OVER 300 UNITS.
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Part II:  Project Information 

55(a) Explain your project in detail. This description should include explanation of all
activities which will occur due to this project. Attach additional sheets if necessary.

Reasons for Project 

6(a) Please explain in detail why you want to undertake this project.

6(b) Why are you requesting the involvement of the Agency in your project?

THE NEED FOR ADDITIONAL HOUSING UNITS IN CENTRAL NEW YORK IS WELL DOCUMENTED THROUGH THE 
ONEIDA COUNTY HOUSING STUDY 2025.THE APARTMENTS TO BE BUILT ARE MARKET RATE 2 BEDROOM 
TOWNHOUSE STYLE. THESE TYPES OF UNITS APPEAL TO THE DEMAGRAPHICS THAT WILL BE EMPLOYED BY 
THE INDUSTRIES RELOCATING TO ONEIDA COUNTIES GROWING ECONOMY. THE LOCATION IS 20 MINUTE 
DRIVE TO ROME GRIFISS INDUSTRIAL PARK. WORKING PEOPLE BETWEEN THERE LATE TWENTIES AND EARLY 
SIXTIES ARE OUR PRIMARY TENANT. THE SITE WAS SELECTED DUE TO THE ACCESS TO SIDEWALKS AND 
VILLAGE GREEN.THE PROJECT FITS IN TO OUR MANAGEMENT AREA FOCUS. LEWISTON PROPERTIES FOR 
PAST 10 YEARS RUNS AT FULL OCCUPANCY AND NEEDS ADDITIONAL NEW CONSTRUCTION APARTMENT 
INVENTORY TO FILL OUR DEMAND.

DUE TO THE HIGH COST OF BUILDING NEW HOUSING UNITS, THE ASSISTANCE WILL HELP MAKE THE PROJECT 
VIABLE SO AS THE VALUE WILL BE CLOSE TO THE COST. BASED ON THE PROJECTED RENTS, WITHOUT 
ASSISTANCE, THE PROJECT COSTS MAY EXCEED THE VALUE DEEMING THE PROJECT NOT FEASIBLE. 

 see addendum #1



(7)

6(c)

Yes No

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the 
Agency, then provide a statement in the space provided
below indicating why the should :

How will the Applicant’s plans be affected or scaled back if Agency approval is not granted?

6(d)

Yes   No 

Yes  No 

6( )

THE PROJECT MAY NOT BE FEASIBLE. 

✔

✔

✔

✔
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6(f) Has the Applicant or any related entity previously secured financial assistance in Oneida
County (whether through the Agency, the Empire State Development Corporation, or any 
other entity) ?    [ ] Yes      [     ] No

If es, please explain (indicate date of benefit, location of facility and outstanding
balance).

6(g) Has the Applicant or any related entity secured financial assistance anywhere within the 
United States within the last 90 days or does the Applicant or any related entity anticipate 
receiving financial assistance within the next 90 days?    [ ]  Yes      [     ] No
If es, please explain.

6(h) Check all categories best describing the 

Manufacturing

Industrial Assembly or Service

Back office operations 

Research and Development

Technology/Cybersecurity 

Warehousing

Commercial or Recreational

Retail 

ercentage of sq. footage
each use (if more than one category): 

 Residential housing (specify) 

 Pollution Control (specify) 

 Environmental (e.g., Brownfield) (specify) 

Other (specif )specifff )Other (s

34 townhouse apartments

 Between 2007 and 2017, Lewiston at Clinton St. LLC accessed OCIDA sales tax exemption and mortgage recording 
tax exemption benefits on Phases 2 through 5 of the Pheasant Run apartment complex at 100 Pheasants Run in 
Kirkland.

✔

✔

✔

100



6(i) Check all categories best describing the scope of the project:

[ ] Acquisition of land 

[ ] Acquisition of existing building 

[ ] Renovations to existing building 

[ ] Construction of addition to existing building 

[ ] Demolition of existing building or

[ ] Construction of a new building 

[ ] Acquisition of machinery and/or equipment

[ ] Installation of machinery and/or equipment 

[ ] Other (specify) 

6(j) Please indicate the financial assistance you are requesting of the Agency, and provide  
the estimated value of said assistance. Attach a sheet labeled Annual PILOT that shows 
the annual utilization of the Real Property Tax Abatement by year and by 
taxing jurisdiction .

Assistance

[ ] Real Property Tax Abatement

Estimated Value

[ ] Mortgage Tax Exemption (.75%) $

Amount of mortgage: $  

[ ] Sales and Use Tax Exemption ** (8.75%) $
Value of goods/services to be exempted from sales tax: $

[ ] Issuance by the Agency of Tax Exempt Bonds $

Is the financial assistance requested by the Applicant consistent with the IDA’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy? Yes No

If , please provide a written statement describing the financial assistance being requested
and detailing the reasons the IDA should consider deviating from its Policy.

**

✔

✔

✔

248,722

50,062.50

6675000

337,750.00

3860000

✔

✔

✔

$ 636,535
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Part III: Facility Information

77(a) Street Address of Facility: 

7(b) City, Town and/or Village (list ALL incorporated municipalities): 

7(c) School District: 

Attach copies of the most recent real property tax bills. Include copies for
all taxing jurisdictions for the site/ facility that IDA assistance is being sought.

Facility (Physical Information) If multiple locations please provide information on 
all.

7( ) For what purpose was the facility site most recently used (i.e., light manufacturing, heavy 
manufacturing, assembly, etc.)? 

7( ) Zoning Classification of location of the project: 

7( ) Please describe in detail the facility to be acquired, constructed or renovated (including
number of buildings, square footage, number of floors, type of construction,) and attach 
plot plans, photos or renderings, if available. If there are infrastructure improvements 
(water, sewer, gas, electrical, etc.) please provide details along with who will carry out 
those improvements and who will fund them. Please be as specific as possible. 

137 McBRIDE AVE.

CLINTON, NY, TOWN OF KIRKLAND NY

CLINTON CENTRAL SCHOOL

R-2P

THE PROJECT WILL CONSIST OF GROUND UP NEW CONSTRUCTION OF 6 BUILDINGS WITH A TOTAL OF 34 
TOWNHOUSE STYLE APARTMENTS. THE APARTMENTS WILL FEATURE 2 BEDROOMS AND 1 AND 1/2 
BATHS. THE APROXIMATE SQUARE FOOTAGE WILL BE 1200. +/-. 

VACANT BUILDINGS
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7( ) Has construction or renovation commenced? [ ]Yes [ ]No

If es, please describe the work in detail that has been undertaken to date, including the
date of commencement.

If o, indicate the estimated dates of commencement and completion:

ommencement:

Construction completion:

7( ) Will the construction or operation of the facility or any activity which will occur at the
site

Yes No N/A 

If Yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the planning department approval
along with the related State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) determination. If no, 
please provide the status of approval: 

7( ) Will the project have a significant effect on the environment? [ ]No

Important: please attach and sign Part 1 of either the the long or short Environmental 
Assessment Form to this Application. 

years 7( ) What is the useful life of the facility?

7( ) Is the site in a former Empire Zone? [ ]Yes [ ]No

]Yes [ No
If es, which Empire Zone:
Is project located in a Federal HUB Zone or distressed area: [
Provide detail. 

August 1 2025

August 1 2027

✔

✔

50

DEMOLITION OF 6 BUILDINGS AND CLEANUP OF CONTAMINATED SOILS HAS BEEN COMPLETED. SEE 
CLOSEOUT LETTER SENT TO DEC AS AS ADDENDUM #2

THE PROPERY WAS REZONED TO MEET THE INTENDED USE. THE SITE PLAN WENT THROUGH THE 
PLANNING BOARD OF CLINTON AND WAS APPROVED BY ALL REQUIRED AGENCIES. 

✔

✔

✔

✔
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Part V: Retail Project Questionnaire

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the 
Agency requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers 
personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase 
services.

. Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from
equity or other sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in
making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

Yes or
If the answer is , please continue .

,

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily 
engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 
1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit 
the Project. 

. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the
project? %. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the
remainder of th retail determination and proceed to next section

If the answer to A is Yes AND the answer to B is greater than 33.33%, indicate
which of the following questions below apply to the project:

1. Will the project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation Yes No

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from
outside Oneida County?

Yes No

If yes, please provide a third party market analysis or other documentation supporting 
your response. 

3. Is the predominant purpose of the project to make available goods or services which
would not, but for the project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the
municipality within which the proposed project would be located because of a lack of
reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such goods or services?

Yes No

If yes, please provide a third party market analysis that demonstrates that a majority of 
the project’s customers are expected to come from outside of Oneida County and the 
project will not directly compete with existing businesses located in Oneida County. 

✔



(1 )

]

Part V: Facility (Legal Information)

(a) With respect to the present owner of the facility, please give the following
information and provide a brief statement regarding the status of the acquisition.

(Note:    the present owner is not necessarily the user of the facility, but that party which holds legal title to the facility.) 

Legal Name: 

Address: 

Telephone: 

Balance of Mortgage:

Holder of Mortgage: 

If the Applicant is not the present owner of the facility, please attach any 
written agreements and contracts concerning the acquisition of the real property 
and/or equipment. 

(b) Is there a legal relationship, directly or indirectly, by virtue of common control or through
related persons, between the Applicant and the present owner of the facility? 
[   ]  Yes   [   ] No. If es, please explain.

(c) Will a related real estate holding company, partnership or other entity, be involved in the
ownership structure of the transaction? 
[   ]  Yes   [      No. IIf es, please explain.

(d) Will the title owner of the facility/property also be the user of the facility?
[ ] Yes [ ]  No If , please explain.

LEWISTON CLINTON TOWNHOMES LLC

194 CLINTON RD.

NEW HARTFORD, NY 13413

315 724-0562

0

0

✔

✔

✔

Owner and Applicant the same 

Applicant will own facility
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(e) Is the Applicant currently a tenant in the facility? [ ]  Yes [ ] No

(f) Are you planning to use the entire proposed facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No

If o, please give the following information with respect to tenant(s) which will
remain in the facility after the completion of the project, including the square 
footage the Applicant will occupy: 

Name of Floors Sq Ft Occupied

(g) Are any of the tenants related to the owner of the facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No

(h) Will there be any other users utilizing the facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No
If es, please explain. Provide detail of the contractual arrangement
including any financial exchange for the use of the site or property. 

Part VI: Equipment

(a) List the principal items or categories of equipment to be acquired as part of the project.
If you are requesting sales tax exemption it is important to be as detailed as possible. (If 
a complete list is not available at time of application, as soon as one is available but prior 
to final authorizing resolution, please submit a detailed inventory of said equipment to be 
covered.) Attach a sheet if needed. 

(b) Please provide a brief description of any equipment which has already been purchased
or ordered, attach all invoices and purchase orders, list amounts paid and dates of 
expected delivery.  Attach a sheet if needed. 

(c) What is the useful life of the equipment? years 

✔

✔

✔

✔

N/A

N/A



assistance is granted

(1 )

Number of Jobs 
BEFORE Project

Location
1

Location 
2

Location 
3

Location 
4

Location
5

Total
Address in NYS

Full-Time Company

Full-Time Independent 
Contractors

Full-Time Leased

Total Full-Time BEFORE

Part-Time Company

Part-Time Independent 
Contractors

Part-Time Leased

Total Part-Time BEFORE

Continued on next page

Part : Employment Information

((a) Estimate how many construction jobs will be created or retained as a result of this project.

Will the project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

NoYes If es, explain

1 ( ) Job Information related to project ***

Estimate below how many jobs will be created and retained as a result of this project, if OCIDA

Total BEFORE

Yes No If es, explain

135

✔
Applicant will add 1 full time maintanace position and also utilize subcontractors for maintanace. 

0
0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0 0

✔



(1 )

Number of Jobs AFTER
Project (within 3 years 
of project completion)

Location 
1

Location 
2

Location 
3

Location 
4

Location 
5

Total

Full-time Company

Full-Time Independent 
Contractors

Full-Time Leased

Total Full-Time AFTER

Part-Time Company

Part-Time Independent 
Contractors

Part-Time Leased

Total Part-Time AFTER

Estimate the number of
residents from the 
Labor Market Area** in
which the Project is 
located that will fill the

within
three years of project 
completion

Location 
1

Location 
2

Location 
3

Location 
4

Location 
5

Total

Full-Time

Part-Time

Total AFTER

Continued on next page

Total AFTER

1 1

0

0

1 0 0 0 0 1

0

0

0

0

1 0 0 0 0 1

1 1

0

1 0 0 0 0 1



(1 )

Retained Jobs Created Jobs

SALARY AND BENEFITS
Average 
Annual 
Salary

Average 
Fringe 

Benefits
(as a

percentage of 
wages)

Averag
Annual 
Salary

Average 
Fringe 

Benefits 
(as a 

percentage 
of wages)

Management $ % $ %

Administrative $ % $ %

Production $ % $ %

Independent Contractor $ % $ %

Other $ % $ %

Overall Weighted Average $ % $ %

*** By statute, Agency staff must project the number of Full-Time Jobs that would be
retained and created if the request for Financial Assistance is granted. 

11 ( ) Please list N codes for the jobs affiliated with this project:

50000. 50

531110



( )

Part : Estimated Project Cost and Financing

1 (a)  List the costs necessary for the facility.

A

Legal Fees ( plicant )

Other )

Subtotal

Total Project Cost

1

Acquisition

8,900,000

44,500

8,944,500

7,720,000

100,000

20,000

750,000

10,000

APPLICANT WILL USE ITS EQUITY AND CREDIT LINE WITH PATHFINDER BANK TO BUILD OUT THE PROJECT. 

300,000

✔

✔



( )

11 ( ) Sources of Funds for Project Costs

Bank Financing: $

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits) $

$

$

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable) 

Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable) 

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal
credits ) $

Identify each state and federal grant/credit:

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: $

Real Estate Taxes

1 (a) For each tax parcel which comprises the facility, please
provide the following information

Tax Map  #

Current

Assess

CurrentCurrent

Ass

6,544,500

2,400,000

8,944,500

337.015-1-17 65000. 4800

337.015-1-17.1 85000. 6200

337.015-1-18 52930. 3800

337.015-1-26 55000. 4000

new consolidated parcel 0 0

0

0

0

0

510000.

✔

✔



(2 )

11 ( )  Address of Receiver of Town and/or Village Taxes :

1 ( )  Address of Receiver of School Taxes:

Please complete Cost/Benefit Analysis form attach to this
Application.

RECEIVER OF TAXES 

100 NORTH PARK ROW

CLINTON, NY 13323

CLINTON CENTRAL SCHOOL

75 CHENANGO AVE.

CLINTON, NY 13323

✔



NYS SEQRA Environmental Review 

• The applicant must complete, sign and return to the IDA either the Short Form
Environmental Assessment Form (SEAF) or the Full Environmental Assessment Form
(FEAF). See the NYS DEC website for the most current versions of these documents.

• To determine which EAF form is appropriate for the project, the applicant
should consult with its engineer or legal counsel.

• It is the IDA’s strong preference that the municipality that governs the jurisdiction
where the project is located (e.g., a Planning Board, Zoning Board or other supervisory
board) serve as lead agency for the SEQR review.

• In limited cases, the IDA will act as lead agency, but it may lead to additional cost
to the applicant if a review is required to make a determination of environmental impact.

• If another public body is serving as lead agency for the SEQR review the applicant
should provide the IDA with a signed Part 2 (and Part 3 if using the Long Form) and any
minutes of meetings that detail the lead agency’s determination.

• The IDA cannot grant any financial assistance until the SEQR review process is
complete.



Agency Fee Schedule 

Application Fee: $500. Solar projects: $5,000. Due at time of application submittal. Non-
refundable if the applicant fails to close on the project with the Agency.  

Commitment Fee: $1,000. Due at time of application submittal; Upon closing with the IDA this 
amount is applied to the IDA Agency Fee.  

Bond Fee:  ½ of 1% of total bond amount 

IDA Agency Fee: (PILOT, Mortgage Recording Exemption, Sales Tax Exemption) 
o Up to a $1.0 Million project - $5,000
o Above $1.0 Million project up to $10.0 Million project – ½ of 1% of total project

cost.
o Above $10.0 Million project – ½ of 1% of total project cost up to $10.0 Million plus

incremental increase of ¼ of 1% of total project above $10.0 Million.
o Any previously induced solar or renewable energy projects that have not yet

proceeded to a final authorizing resolution, and are asking for an increase in
benefits, will be subject to an Agency fee of one and one-half times the Agency’s
normal fee.

Transaction Counsel/Agency Counsel Fee: 
Set by Bond/Transaction Counsel based upon the nature and complexity of the transaction. 
This applies to bond and non-bond transactions (leasebacks, sale-leasebacks, etc). 

Transaction Counsel/Agency Counsel fees for bond transactions typically will not exceed 2% of 
the bond amount or project costs. Transaction Counsel/Agency Counsel fees for a sale- 
leaseback/lease-leaseback transaction are typically $8,500 to $15,000 if no commercial financing 
is involved or $10,000 to $18,000 if commercial financing is involved. You will receive an 
engagement letter with a quote based upon the scope of your project. 

Annual Fee (Lease/Rent Fee): 
For the term in which the property remains in the IDA’s name, an annual lease payment is due 
in the amount of $750 (Solar Projects: $2,000). The first payment is due at closing and 
subsequent payments are due each January 1. For annual fees not paid and delinquent, a 
late charge of $50 per month will be levied until such time the fee plus late charges are paid. 

Other Fees: 
If Applicant requests the IDA enter into subsequent transactions following closing (i.e., a facility 
refinance), the IDA will charge a closing fee equal to 1/8 of one percent of the total reissuance, 
redemption, new or revised mortgage, refinancing, spreading agreement or other transaction 
with a minimum payment due of $500. The Applicant will also be responsible to pay any legal 
fees and any bank or financial institution fees the IDA incurs in connection with said transaction, 
throughout the term of the Agency's involvement with the facility. The applicant is obligated to 
reimburse the Agency for all fees and expenses incurred by the Agency, Agency Counsel, and 
Bond Counsel, regardless of whether the transaction closes or not.  

Revised 8-20-2021 

(22)
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REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATION BY APPLICANT 
 

The undersigned requests that this Application be submitted for review to the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) and its Board of Directors. 

 
Approval of the Application can be granted solely by this Agency’s Board of Directors. The undersigned 
acknowledges that Applicant shall be responsible for all costs incurred by the Agency and its counsel in 
connection with the attendant negotiations whether or not the transaction is carried to a successful 
conclusion. 

 
The Applicant further understands and agrees with the Agency as follows: 

 
1. Annual Sales Tax Filings. In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal 

Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales tax exemptions as 
part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General 
Municipal Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State Department 
of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, 
describing the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or 
subcontractors retained by the Applicant. 

 
2. Annual Employment, Tax Exemption & Bond Status Reports. The Applicant understands and 

agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees 
to file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports regarding the number of 
people employed at the project site as well as tax exemption benefits received with the action of the 
Agency. For Applicants not responding to the Agency’s request for reports by the stated due date, a 
$500 late fee will charged to the Applicant for each 30-day period the report is late beyond the due 
date, up until the time the report is submitted. Failure to provide such reports as provided in the 
transaction documents will be an Event of Default under the Lease (or Leaseback) Agreement 
between the Agency and Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to provide the Agency with an 
Annual Employment, Tax Exemption & Bond Status Report may be reported to Agency board 
members, said report being an agenda item subject to the Open Meetings Law. 

 
3. Absence of Conflict of Interest. The Applicant has consulted the Agency website of the list of the 

Agency members, officers and employees of the Agency. No member, officer, or employee of the 
Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, in any transaction contemplated by this 
Application, except as herein after described (if none, state “none”): 

 
4. Hold Harmless. Applicant hereby releases the Agency and its members, officers, servants, agents 

and employees from, agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend 
and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred 
by (A) the Agency’s examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the attached 
Application, regardless of whether or not the Application or the Project described therein or the tax 
exemptions and other assistance requested therein are favorably acted upon by the Agency, (B) the 
Agency’s acquisition, construction and/or installation of the Project described therein and (C) any 
further action taken by the Agency with respect to the Project; including without limiting the generality 
of the foregoing, all causes of action and attorneys’ fees and any other expenses incurred in 
defending any suits or actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. If, for any reason, 
the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate necessary negotiations, or fails, within a reasonable 
or specified period of time, to take reasonable, proper or requested action, or withdraws, abandons, 
cancels or neglects the Application, or if the Agency or the Applicant are unable to reach final 



(24)  

agreement with respect to the Project, then, and in the event, upon presentation of an invoice 
itemizing the same, the Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents or assigns, all costs incurred by 
the Agency in the processing of the Application, including attorneys’ fees, if any. 

 
5. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency has disclosed that the actions and activities of the 

Agency are subject to the Public Authorities Accountability Act signed into law January 13, 2006 as 
Chapter 766 of the 2005 Laws of the State of New York. 

 
6. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of Information 

Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records related to this 
application are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to limited statutory 
exclusions. 

 
7. The Applicant acknowledges that it has been provided with a copy of the Agency’s recapture policy 

(the “Recapture Policy”). The Applicant covenants and agrees that it fully understands that the 
Recapture Policy is applicable to the Project that is the subject of this Application, and that the 
Agency will implement the Recapture Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant 
further covenants and agrees that its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial 
assistance and/or recapture of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted. 

 
8. The Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York 

General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is provided for 
the proposed Project: 

 
§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in 
respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or 
manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of 
the state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant 
located within the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency 
shall determine on the basis of the application before it that the project is reasonably 
necessary to discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a 
location outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of 
the project occupant in its respective industry. 

 
9. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving Financial 

Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable local, state and 
federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations. 

 
10. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or knowingly 

misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial Assistance and the 
reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption claimed by reason of the 
Agency’s involvement the Project. 

 
11. The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the 

Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the New York General 
Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and Section 862(1) of the 
New York General Municipal Law. 

 
12. The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of the Applicant acknowledge 

that the Agency will rely on the representations made herein when acting on this Application and 
hereby represent that the statements made herein do not contain any untrue statement of a material 
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APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE



( )

Housing Project Questionnaire

Complete the following questions only if your project is a Housing Project. Please 
reference the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Uniform Tax Exemption 
and Agency Benefits Policy Market Rate Rental Housing Development Initiatives. (Add 
additional pages as needed). 

(( ) Describe the housing project to be constructed or renovated in detail (type of housing,
number of units, etc.):

( ) Describe how you will change the current use of the facility or property being utilized for the
project. To assist the IDA in their determination of an eligible vacant urban infill site project
please provide an extensive explanation as well as photos of what is being removed or replaced 
with the new construction.

( ) Will the project have any impact on the existing infrastructure or upgrades to the
current infrastructure (water, sewer, electrical, gas, etc.)? If yes please provide detail and who
you are working with at the applicable organization. 

( ) If your project is a multi-use facility please provide details of the project, project square
footage breakdown of non-housing to housing usage, detail the job creation and retention 
associated with the non-housing component. 

( ) Does the project  provide a community benefit? If yes provide detail substantiating
(reference the IDA policy). 

Currently the proprty has 6 structures on it. All are vacant. All structures will be removed to make way for the new 
construction of 34 Townhouse apartment units which will have access to the village sidewalk.

The current infrastructure will not need any upgrades or improvements to accept the apartments to be constructed. 

The project will be residential apartment units only.

The project will be adjacent to the proposed Kirkland trail system. Allowing residience to acces without leaving the 
propery. It will also include sidewalks connecting into the village of Clinton. 



























Estimated Full Market Value (in thousands) (Provide)
Muni Equalization Rate % at time of application** (Provide)
Estimated Assessment in 1,000s 510.000$                Auto calculates from C6+C7 if provided

Full Payment Rate Year Muni
Oneida County 10.843517$            5,530$                     2023 Oneida (Provide)

City or Township w/districts** 7.384049$              3,766$                     2023 Kirkland (Provide)
Village** 9.69$                       4,942$                     Clinton (Provide)

School District 44.830100$            22,863$                   22-23 Clinton (Provide)
Total 72.747666$            37,101$                   

**Verify equalization rates with jurisdiction for parity with other jurisdictions
Annual rate increase factor of 2% is used in calculator Lewiston Clinton Townhomes-Tier 1

1.02
Full 485-b Housing Tier 1 Housing Tier 2 OTHER

Year 1 74.20$  37,843$                  18,922$                   -$                       9,461$                   
Year 2 75.69$  38,600$                  21,230$                   -$                       9,650$                   
Year 3 77.20$  39,372$                  23,623$                   -$                       9,843$                   
Year 4 78.74$  40,160$                  26,104$                   -$                       10,040$                 
Year 5 80.32$  40,963$                  28,674$                   10,241$                 20,481$                 
Year 6 81.93$  41,782$                  31,337$                   20,891$                 41,782$                 
Year 7 83.56$  42,618$                  34,094$                   21,309$                 42,618$                 
Year 8 85.24$  43,470$                  36,950$                   32,603$                 43,470$                 
Year 9 86.94$  44,339$                  39,906$                   39,906$                 44,339$                 

Year 10 88.68$  45,226$                  42,965$                   40,704$                 45,226$                 PILOT VALUE

Total Due: 414,374$                303,804$                 165,652$               276,911$               248,721.55$               

Full 485-b Housing Tier 1 Housing Tier 2 OTHER
Year 1 50 100 75
Year 2 45 100 75
Year 3 40 100 75
Year 4 35 100 75
Year 5 30 75 50
Year 6 25 50 25
Year 7 20 50
Year 8 15 25
Year 9 10 10

Year 10 5 10

HOUSING - PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX BENEFIT VALUE CALCULATOR

Information on Real Property Proposed For PILOT

Tax Rates Per 1k of Assessment at time of application*

*Do not include Special District Tax Rates

PILOT VALUE CALCULATOR VALUES

Abatement Percentages

To be used as guidance to calculate the PILOT Benefit value on Page 9 of application. Rates and assessments are for 
example only.

Estimated Payment Calculations



18-Jul-25
COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Required by §859-a(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC
194 Clinton Rd., New Hartford NY 

Description of Project: 34 unity townhouse apartment facility
at 138 McBride and Taylor Aves/Utica St.

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of 
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant: Robert L., Michael A., Daniel A., Mark Lewis

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced 34 unit townhouse market rate rental apartment facility
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project: Aug-27

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds

X Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
X Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement
X Real Property Tax Abatement

  ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY



C

Project Costs
Land Acquisition 300,000$              
Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION -$                     
Existing Building(S) RENOVATION -$                     
NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION 7,720,000$           
Installation Costs
Site Preparation/Parking Lot Construction
Machinery & Equipment (other than furniture)
Furniture & Fixtures -$                     
Architectural & Engineering 100,000$              

Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel) 20,000$                

Financial (all costs related to project financing) 750,000$              
Permits 10,000$                
Other
Agency Fee 44,500$                
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT 8,944,500$           

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount: -$                     
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs 0 -$                                    
Created Jobs FTE  (over three years) 1 50,000$                              
Retained Jobs 0 -$                                    

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant 50,000$                
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25,000$                
Average of Construction Jobs 32,000$                

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 15 person - years of employmen
Construction Person Years of Employment: 39

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)
Total Earnings Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 150,000$              6,375$                                
Existing -$                     -$                                    

Indirect Jobs
Created 187,500$              7,969$                                
Existing -$                     -$                                    

Construction - only one year
Person Years 1,235,200$           52,496$                              

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Yr Period) 1,572,700$           66,840$                              

Average Salary of these 
Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% 54,000$                              5,265$                    
Existing 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 67,500$                              6,581$                    
Existing 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 444,672$                            43,356$                  

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES 566,172$                            55,202$                  

Municipality
44.8301 Clinton 24-25

17.074049 Kirkland/Clinton 25
10.843517 Oneida 25

Total Rate: 72.747666
Real Property Taxes Paid: 4,947$                  

COSTS: IDA BENEFITS

Real Property Taxes Abatement 248,722$                            
Mortgage Tax Abated (.75%) 50,063$                              
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Construction Period (8.75%) 337,750$                            

Total: 636,535$                            

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 

Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 

Tax Rate for County:

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.



Lewiston Clinton Townhomes, LLC  

Page 1 of 2 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Uniform Tax Exemption and 
Agency Benefits Policy Market Rate Rental Housing Development Initiatives 
(Effective March 1, 2015 and revised on April 20, 2018) 

1. Criteria:

OCIDA will entertain applications for assistance that fall within the following criteria, using the following 100 
point scoring system for each application received: 

Criteria Description of 
Criteria 

Possible 
Points 

Score 

Adaptive Reuse 
Projects 

Projects that propose a change in use to an existing building (e.g., reuse 
of vacant or underutilized facility) or propose development on a vacant 
urban infill site2 that is being repurposed or redeveloped for an eligible 
housing project. 

25 25 

Eligible Area 
Locations 

Projects located within Eligible Areas (see attached map) that have a 
minimum of 5 units in a renovation or conversion of a building and 24 units 
for new construction, except for urban infill development projects where 
the IDA will entertain applications for projects located on a vacant urban 
infill site that has less than 24 units of eligible housing. 

20 20 

Utilizes Existing 
Infrastructure 

Projects that utilize existing infrastructure (i.e. utilizing both existing sewer 
and water services and do not require system expansion. Modernizations, 
such as replacing existing pipes where service is already provided, are viewed 
favorably). 

20 20 

Community 
Benefits 

Projects that create other benefits that inure to the benefit of the 
community that may include: rebuilding  community infrastructure, pays 
sewer credits, creates or contributes to a community amenity, dedicates 
land to a municipality for a public improvement which benefits health and 
safety,  removes slums and blighting influences (e.g., demolition or supports 
in-fill development within a neighborhood, commercial corridor, downtown, 
or main street area), provides an environmental enhancement (e.g., flooding 
wetlands creation/restoration, is part of a Brownfield, utilizes federal/state 
historic tax credit programs, provides mixed income rental units to support 
workforce housing, or provides other benefits deemed important and 
relevant by OCIDA. 

5 5 

2 Urban infill site would include infill rental housing being constructed on vacant or underutilized property. 



Lewiston at Clinton Townhomes, LLC   
 

Page 2 of 2  

 

2. Scoring of Housing Applications: 
OCIDA shall use this scoring system to determine the level of Agency benefits: 

 Tier 1 Benefits: projects that score at least 60 points may receive abatement of 
real property taxes, exemptions from sales taxes and exemptions from 
mortgage recording taxes 

 Tier 2 Benefits: projects that score between 50 to 59 points may receive 
abatement of real property taxes, exemptions from sales taxes and exemptions 
from mortgage recording taxes 

 Tier 3 Benefits: projects that score 40 to 49 points may receive exemptions 
from sales taxes and exemptions from mortgage recording taxes (not eligible 
for abatement of real property taxes) 

 
Term of PILOT 

Exemption Schedule 
Tier 1 – PILOT 

Exemption Schedule 
Tier 2 – PILOT 

Exemption Schedule 
1 100% 75% 
2 100% 75% 
3 100% 75% 
4 100% 75% 
5 75% 50% 
6 50% 25% 
7 50%  
8 25%  
9 10%  

10 10%  
 

Applicants will pay 100% of all taxes due and owed until a Certificate of Occupancy is 
issued for a project, and then the first exemption year in the schedule will begin effective 
the first taxable status date after a Certificate of Occupancy is issued. 

Green 
Projects 

(1) Projects to be constructed on a New York State or federal defined Brownfield, 
such as a site designated as a federal or state Superfund site; a participant in the 
State Voluntary Cleanup Program; a former, verified Manufacturing Gas Plant, or 
within a Brownfield Opportunity Area; or (2) Projects whose plans qualify for a 
LEED Certification from the US Green Building Council (final certification required 
prior to commencement of the PILOT Agreement); or (3) Projects that incorporate 
geothermal technologies that are projected to make a significant impact on the 
stability, reliability and resilience of the grid. The physical geothermal plant 
providing energy to the Project must be located within Oneida County, turned on 
and connected to the grid, the energy generated must provide at least fifty 
percent (50%) of the energy needs for the Project, and more than fifty percent 
(50%) of the energy generated must be used in Oneida County. 

10 0 
 

Mixed  
Use 
Dev. 
Projects 

Projects that are mixed use development with housing being at least –50% or 
more of a building’s total area and the project induces job growth (mixed use 
development project proposes direct job creation with non-residential uses). To 
reach 20 points, must create at least 2 FTEs. 

20 0 

Total Points:  100 70 
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Transcript Document No. [   ] 
 
 

Inducement Resolution 
Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC Facility 

 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION 
TOWARD APPOINTING LEWISTON CLINTON 
TOWNHOMES LLC, THE PRINCIPALS OF LEWISTON 
CLINTON TOWNHOMES LLC, AND/OR AN ENTITY 
FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON BEHALF OF ANY OF 
THE FOREGOING AS AGENT OF THE AGENCY IN 
CONNECTION WITH A LEASE-LEASEBACK 
TRANSACTION, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT AND 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS, Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed 
on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida 
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in construction of 34 market-rate townhouses in six 
buildings, together with parking lots, sidewalks, landscaping and all infrastructure and 
amenities to service the same (collectively, the Improvements”) situated on four parcels 
of land measuring 3± acres in the aggregate located at 137 McBride Avenue, Village of 
Clinton, Town of Kirkland, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); and acquisition and 
installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all for the purpose of 
providing housing within the community for surrounding employers, and to enhance 
talent recruitment and economic development in the region (the Land, the 
Improvements and the Equipment are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the 
construction and equipping of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency, pursuant to 
Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York and Chapter 372 of 
the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York, as may be amended from time to time 
(collectively, the “Act”) and the Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company 
pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job opportunities, 
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health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Oneida has released a study dated March 21, 2025 
entitled, Oneida County, NY Housing Market Inventory, Assessment and Strategy (the 
“County Housing Study”), in which it identifies certain types of housing that need to be 
filled to meet the demands of changing population and workplace demographics within 
Oneida County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, representations made by the Company in its Application for 
Financial Assistance dated July __, 2025 (the “Application”) support the finding that the 
Project will promote employment opportunities and prevent economic deterioration in 
the area served by the Agency by filling the demand for market rate housing units 
described in the County Housing Study and providing quality housing for employers to 
attract a quality workforce to the region; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after reviewing the criteria described in the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy (Housing Policy) (the “Housing Policy”), the Agency has determined 
that the Project achieves a score of 70 points and qualifies for financial assistance in the 
form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of ten (10) years, exemptions from 
mortgage recording taxes, and exemptions from sales tax on materials and equipment 
acquired and installed in connection with the Project, which financial assistance is 
consistent with the Tier 1 benefits described in the Housing Policy, to be more 
particularly described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the Agency 
prior to the closing of the transactions described herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon representations made by the Company in the 
Application, the value of the proposed financial assistance is described as follows: 
 

• Sales and use tax exemption not to exceed $337,750.00 
• Mortgage recording tax exemption not to exceed $50,062.50 
• Real property tax abatement estimated at $248,722.00 

 
 WHEREAS, attached hereto as Exhibit A is the criteria the Agency considered 
when contemplating the financial assistance for the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback transaction, and the 
granting of any financial assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so that 
all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the financial assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a lease-
leaseback transaction, and the granting of any financial assistance, and such notice 
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(together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit C; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application of the 
Company and to representations by the Company that the proposed lease-leaseback 
transaction is either an inducement to the Company to maintain and expand the Facility 
in the County or is necessary to maintain the competitive position of the Company in its 
industry; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has committed to create 1 FTEs in Oneida County by 
the end of the third lease year as a result of the Project, and the Agency will condition 
the proposed financial assistance on the Company achieving the same and maintaining 
the FTE for the full lease term and completing the Project such that it materially meets 
the goals described in the Project Scoring Criteria, or be subject to termination or 
recapture of financial assistance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation 
of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency 
constitutes a “State Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Facility may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared and submitted to 
the Agency an Environmental Assessment Form and related documents (the 
“Questionnaire”) with respect to the Facility, a copy of which is on file at the office of the 
Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Kirkland Planning Board is acting as lead agency for the 
purposes of SEQRA; and 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to the granting of any financial assistance and following the 
determination of the lead agency, the Agency will complete its environmental review 
and make determinations for purposes of SEQRA. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that: 
 
Section 1. (a) The acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facility and the 

Agency’s financial assistance therefor, will promote job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and the economic welfare 
of the inhabitants of the County and the people of the State of New 



 

 4  
22004872.v1-7/17/25 

York and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the 
public purposes of the Act and the same is, therefore, approved. 

 
  (b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 

a lease-leaseback transaction for the purpose of providing financial 
assistance for the acquisition, construction and equipping of the 
Facility, as reflected in the Company’s application to the Agency 
and as amended from time to time prior to the closing of the lease-
leaseback transaction. 

 
  (c) Based upon representations made by the Company in its 

Application and based upon the County Housing Study, the Agency 
determines that the Project will promote employment opportunities 
and prevent economic deterioration in Oneida County by filling the 
demand for market rate housing units described in the County 
Housing Study and providing quality housing for employers to 
attract a quality workforce to the region. 

 
Section 2.  The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 

substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the lease-
leaseback transaction, and the development of the Facility (the 
"Agreement") is hereby approved.  The Chairman of the Agency is 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver 
the Agreement, with such changes in terms and form as the 
Chairman shall approve. The execution thereof by the Chairman 
shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
Section 3.  The Agency shall assist the Company in the acquisition, 

construction and equipping of the Facility and will provide financial 
assistance with respect thereto subject to (i) obtaining all necessary 
governmental approvals, (ii) approval of the members of the 
Company, (iii) approval of the members of the Agency, 
(iv) satisfactory completion of the environmental review of the 
Facility by the Agency in compliance with the State Environmental 
Quality Review Act, (v) agreement by the Agency and the Company 
upon mutually acceptable terms and conditions for the Leaseback 
Agreement and other documentation usual and customary to 
transactions of this nature, (vi) the condition that there are no 
changes in New York State Law which prohibit or limit the Agency 
from fulfilling its obligation and commitment as herein set forth to 
enter into the lease-leaseback transaction and (vii) payment by the 
Company of the Agency's transaction fee and the fees and 
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disbursements of bond counsel or transaction counsel, more 
particularly described in the Inducement Agreement. 

 
Section 4.  The Company is herewith and hereby appointed the agent of the 

Agency to acquire, construct, equip and complete the Facility.  The 
Company is hereby empowered to delegate its status as agent of 
the Agency to the agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, 
materialmen, suppliers, vendors and such other parties as the 
Company may choose in order to acquire, construct, equip and 
complete the Facility. The terms and conditions for the appointment 
of the Company as agent of the Agency for the purposes described 
in this resolution are set forth in the form of the attached letter 
addressed to the Company, marked as Exhibit D to this resolution.  
The form of such letter is incorporated herein by reference and is 
approved and adopted by the Agency, and the Chairman or 
Executive Director of the Agency or any other duly authorized 
official of the Agency are authorized to execute and deliver such 
letter to the Company upon satisfaction of the conditions described 
in Section 3 hereof. The Agency hereby appoints the Company, the 
agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, 
vendors and suppliers of the Company as agents of the Agency 
solely for purposes of making sales or leases of goods, services, 
and supplies to the Facility, and any such transaction between any 
agent, subagent, contractor, subcontractor, materialmen, vendor or 
supplier, and the Company, as agent of the Agency shall be 
deemed to be on behalf of the Agency and for the benefit of the 
Facility.  The Company shall indemnify the Agency with respect to 
any transaction of any kind between and among the Company, the 
agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, 
vendors and/or suppliers and the Company, as agent of the 
Agency. 

 
Section 5.  The Agency is hereby authorized and directed to schedule the 

Hearing, so that the Agency may receive comments from all 
interested parties on the financial assistance contemplated by the 
Agency and the financial assistance requested by the Company. 

 
Section 6.  The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 

Transaction Counsel in connection with the lease-leaseback 
transaction. 

 
Section 7.  Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 

authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to 
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prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to 
effect the lease-leaseback transaction. 

 
Section 8.   The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 

(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to 
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 9.  This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    : ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
 I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution 
and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 
 
 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on 
July 25, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following 
members were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 

 
Others Present:  
 
 
 

 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
 The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to 
and approved at such meeting. 
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of 
said meeting, (ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law 
(Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public and public notice 
of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such 
Sections 103a and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there 
was a quorum present throughout. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on _____, 2025. 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A 

 
Criteria for Evaluation of Housing Project
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EXHIBIT B 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of 
the New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the ____  day of August 2025 at 
______ a.m., local time, at Kirkland Town Hall, 3699 State Route 12B, Clinton, New 
York 13323 in connection with the following matters: 
 
 Lewiston Clinton Townhomes, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of 
Lewiston Clinton Townhomes, LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed on 
behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a 
transaction in which the Agency will assist in construction of 34 market-rate 
townhouses in six buildings, together with parking lots, sidewalks, landscaping and 
all infrastructure and amenities to service the same (collectively, the Improvements”) 
situated on four parcels of land measuring 3± acres in the aggregate located at 137 
McBride Avenue, Village of Clinton, Town of Kirkland, Oneida County, New York 
(the “Land”); and acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all for the purpose of providing housing within the community for 
surrounding employers, and to enhance talent recruitment and economic 
development in the region (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment are 
referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction and equipping of the 
Improvements is referred to as the “Project”). The Facility will be initially operated 
and/or managed by the Company. 
 
 The Company will lease the Facility to the Agency, and the Agency will lease 
the Facility back to the Company. At the end of the lease term, the Agency will 
terminate its leasehold interest in the Facility. The Agency has determined that the 
Project qualifies for Tier 1 financial assistance under the scoring criteria described in 
its Housing Policy in the form of exemptions from real property taxes for a period of 
ten years, exemptions from mortgage recording taxes and exemptions from sales 
tax on materials and equipment acquired and installed in connection with the 
Project, which financial assistance is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy (Housing Policy), to be more particularly described in a Final 
Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the 
transactions described herein. 
 
  A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place 
hear and accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed 
to either the proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature 
of the Facility. Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or 
electronically prior to the Public Hearing. Members of the public may also access the 
Public Hearing on the Agency’s website. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be 
transcribed and posted on the Agency’s website. A copy of the Application for 
Financial Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, including an analysis of 
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the costs and benefits of the proposed Project, is available for public inspection at 
the offices of the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and on the Agency’s 
website. 
 
      ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
      DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Dated:  July __, 2025  By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT C 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
2025 Real Estate Lease 

Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC Facility 

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at _____ a.m. 

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing. 

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows: 

Lewiston Clinton Townhomes, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Lewiston Clinton Townhomes, LLC, and/or an entity 
formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, 
the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in construction of 34 market-rate 
townhouses in six buildings, together with parking lots, sidewalks, 
landscaping and all infrastructure and amenities to service the same 
(collectively, the Improvements”) situated on four parcels of land 
measuring 3± acres in the aggregate located at 137 McBride Avenue, 
Village of Clinton, Town of Kirkland, Oneida County, New York (the 
“Land”); and acquisition and installation of equipment in the 
Improvements (the “Equipment”), all for the purpose of providing 
housing within the community for surrounding employers, and to 
enhance talent recruitment and economic development in the region 
(the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment are referred to 
collectively as the “Facility” and the construction and equipping of the 
Improvements is referred to as the “Project”). The Facility will be 
initially operated and/or managed by the Company. 
 
The Company will lease the Facility to the Agency, and the Agency will 
lease the Facility back to the Company. At the end of the lease term, 
the Agency will terminate its leasehold interest in the Facility. The 
Agency has determined that the Project qualifies for Tier 1 financial 
assistance under the scoring criteria described in its Housing Policy in 
the form of exemptions from real property taxes for a period of ten 
years, exemptions from mortgage recording taxes and exemptions 
from sales tax on materials and equipment acquired and installed in 
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connection with the Project, which financial assistance is consistent 
with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (Housing Policy), to 
be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be 
adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions 
described herein. 
 

4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Below is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their views. 

 

 

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at _______ a.m. 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 Mark Kaucher 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on August 
__,. 2025 at _________ a.m. local time, at Kirkland Town Hall, 3699 State Route 
12B, Clinton, New York, with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of the minutes in connection with such 
matter. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and Title 1 of Article 18-A of the New York 
General Municipal Law, said hearing was open to the general public, and public 
notice of the time and place of said hearing was duly given in accordance with such 
Section 147(f) and Title 1 of Article 18-A, (ii) the hearing in all respects was duly 
held, and (iii) members of the public had an opportunity to be heard. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025. 
 

_________________________________ 
Secretary 
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EXHIBIT D 

[To be printed on IDA letterhead and delivered to the Company when appropriate] 

___________________, 2025 

Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC 
Attn.: Mark Lewis 
194 Clinton Road 
New Hartford, New York 13413 
 
RE: Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Lease-Leaseback Transaction 

Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC Facility 
 
Dear Mr. Lewis: 

Pursuant to a resolution duly adopted on July 25, 2025, Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) appointed Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC 
(the “Company”) its agent in connection with a transaction in which the Agency will 
assist in construction of 34 market-rate townhouses in six buildings, together with 
parking lots, sidewalks, landscaping and all infrastructure and amenities to service 
the same (collectively, the Improvements”) situated on four parcels of land 
measuring 3± acres in the aggregate located at 137 McBride Avenue, Village of 
Clinton, Town of Kirkland, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); and acquisition 
and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all for the 
purpose of providing housing within the community for surrounding employers, and 
to enhance talent recruitment and economic development in the region (the Land, 
the Improvements and the Equipment are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and 
the construction and equipping of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”). 
The Company will lease the Facility to the Agency and the Agency will lease the 
Facility back to the Company pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement. 
 
This appointment includes authority to purchase on behalf of the Agency all 
materials to be incorporated into and made an integral part of the Facility, and the 
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following activities as they relate to any construction, renovation, equipping and 
completion of any buildings, whether or not any materials, equipment or supplies 
described below are incorporated into or become an integral part of such buildings: 
(i) all purchases, leases, rentals and other uses of tools, machinery and equipment 
in connection with construction, renovation and equipping (ii) all purchases, rentals, 
uses or consumption of supplies, materials and services of every kind and 
description used in connection with construction, renovation and equipping and 
(iii) all purchases, leases, rentals and uses of equipment, machinery, and other 
tangible personal property (including installation costs), installed or placed in, upon 
or under such building, including all repairs and replacements of such property. 
 
The Agency will appoint the Company as its only direct agent for the Project. The 
agency appointment includes the power of the Company to delegate such agency 
appointment, in whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, 
materialmen, suppliers and vendors of the Company and to such other parties as the 
Company chooses so long as they are engaged, directly or indirectly, in the activities 
hereinbefore described. Please advise the Executive Director of the Agency if you 
wish to appoint a contractor or other subagent, and the Agency will issue an ST-60 
to that party. 
 
In exercising this agency appointment, you and each of your properly appointed 
agents and subagents must claim the sales tax exemption for all purchases by 
giving your vendors New York State Form ST-123. The supplier or vendor should 
identify the Facility on each bill or invoice as the “Lewiston Clinton Townhomes 
LLC Facility” and indicate thereon that the Company, its agents, subagents, 
contractors and subcontractors acted as agent for the Agency in making the 
purchase. 
 
You and each of your agents, subagents, contractors and/or subcontractors claiming 
a sales tax exemption in connection with the Facility must complete a New York 
State Department of Taxation and Finance Form ST-60. Original copies of each 
completed Form ST-60 must be delivered to the Agency within five (5) days of the 
appointment of each of your agents, subagents, contractors or subcontractors. Any 
agent, subagent, contractor or subcontractors of the Company which delivers 
completed Form ST-60 to the Agency will be deemed to be the agent, subagent, 
contractor or subcontractor of the Agency for purposes of renovating and equipping 
the Facility, and shall only then be authorized to use Form ST-123 as described 
above.  Failure to comply with these requirements may result in loss of sales tax 
exemptions for the Facility. 
 
It is important to note that contractors and subcontractors who have not been 
appointed subagent cannot use the sales tax exemption for equipment rental, tools, 
supplies and other items that do not become part of the finished project. Contractors 
and subcontractors must be appointed as agent or sub-agent of the Agency to use 
the Agency sales tax exemption for these purchases. Contractors and 
subcontractors who have not been appointed a subagent and are making purchases 
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that would otherwise be exempt outside of the Agency’s interest in the Facility must 
claim the sales tax exemption for renovation materials by giving their vendors a 
completed “Contractor Exempt Purchase Certificate” (Form ST-120.1) checking box 
(a). 
 
The aforesaid appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency to renovate and  
equip the Facility shall expire at the earlier of (a) the completion of such activities 
and improvements, or (b) July 25, 2026, provided, however, such appointment may 
be extended at the discretion of the Agency, upon the written request of the 
Company if such activities and improvements are not completed by such time, and 
further provided that the Agency shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to the 
extension of such appointment. 
 
Based upon representations made by the Company, the value of the sales tax to be 
abated relating to the construction and equipping of the Facility currently authorized 
by the Agency is not to exceed $337,750.00. The Agency is required by law to 
recapture any New York State sales tax exemptions claimed by the Company (a) 
that exceed $100,000.00 for purchases made between July 25, 2025 and the date of 
the public hearing or (b) that exceed $337,750.00 for purchases made relating to the 
Project in the aggregate. 
 
You should be aware that the New York State General Municipal Law requires you 
to file an Annual Statement (Form ST-340) with the New York State Department of 
Taxation and Finance regarding the value of sales tax exemptions you, your agents, 
consultants or subcontractors have claimed pursuant to the authority we have 
conferred on you with respect to the Project. We are providing a form of a worksheet 
for you to track all exempt purchases made in completing the Project, using Forms 
ST-123 or Form ST-120.1. Please provide the Agency with a copy of Form ST-340 
along with your annual report to the Agency and this worksheet. The penalty for 
failure to file such statement, or to provide a copy to the Agency, is the removal of 
your authority to act as an agent. 
 
If, for some reason, this transaction never closes, you will be liable for payment of 
the sales tax, if applicable and you are not otherwise exempt, on all materials 
purchased. 
 
Please sign and return a copy of this letter for our files. The Agency will issue and 
deliver Form ST-60 to you upon receipt of this signed agency appointment letter. 
The Agency reserves the right to issue a revised agency appointment letter with 
respect to the process for utilizing and reporting exemptions hereunder. 
 

Very truly yours, 

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
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By:  
Name: 
Title: 

ACCEPTED & AGREED: 

Lewiston Clinton Townhomes LLC 

 
By:  
Name: 
Title: 
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Resolution – Partial Release of 
Lease – 0.86 acres S. Madison St
RCBRC (Complex 4)

Date: July 25, 2025

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”) held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on July 25, 2025, the 
following members of the Agency were:

Members Present: 

 
EDGE Staff Present: 

Other Attendees:  

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that 
among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters 
pertaining to the release of certain lands from the Rome Community Brownfield 
Restoration Corporation (Complex 4) Facility.

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with 
the following members voting:

Voting Aye Voting Nay
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO EXECUTE THE PARTIAL 
RELEASE OF LEASE, THE DEED, AND RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH 
RESPECT TO CONVEYING A 0.86 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED AT S. 
MADISON STREET, CITY OF ROME, ONEIDA COUNTY.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 
New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York 
(collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among 
other things, to assist with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as 
authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, from the 1920s until 2003, Rome Cable Corporation (“Rome Cable”) 
and its predecessors owned and operated a wire manufacturing and spinning business 
on 61.338± acres of land located on the west side of South Madison Street, City of 
Rome, County of Oneida, State of New York (the “Rome Cable Site”); and

WHEREAS, following Rome Cable’s bankruptcy and closure, it was determined 
that the Rome Cable Site constituted a “brownfield” site in need of environmental 
investigation, remediation, restoration and/or clean-up (collectively, the “Environmental 
Remediation”) so to enable its eventual re-use and/or redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2004, Rome Community Brownfield Restoration 
Corporation (“RCBRC,” and sometimes referred to as the “Company”) was formed for 
the corporate purpose “to promote the development or re-use of property, including 
Brownfield sites within the City of Rome and its environs, to and including acting as an 
entity for title holding and managing said properties for economic development 
purposes;” and

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the Environmental Remediation of the Rome 
Cable Site, and its eventual re-use and re-development, the Agency acquired the fee 
title to portions of the Rome Cable Site by means of (a) a Trustee’s Deed from Mary 
Fangio, as Trustee for Rome Cable Corporation, et. al., dated December 23, 2004 and 
recorded on January 11, 2005 in the Oneida County Clerk’s Office as Instrument No. 
2005-000683 (the “2004 Deed”) and (b) a Trustee’s Deed from Mary Fangio, Trustee in 
Bankruptcy appointed as such in the matter of “Rome Cable Corporation, et. al.”, 
Debtors, dated June 20, 2008 and recorded on July 24, 2008 in the Oneida County 
Clerk’s Office as Instrument No. 2008-012510 (the “2008 Deed”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency leases to RCBRC the premises described in the 2008 
Deed, being an approximately 49.639 acre parcel of land located at Henry Street in the 
City of Rome, County of Oneida and State of New York, known and designated on the 
tax maps of the County of Oneida as tax map parcel numbers: Section 242.000 Block 1 
Lot 7.1 and Section 242.000 Block 1 Lot 54.1 and a vacant 298 x125 (0.86 acre) parcel 
of land on S. Madison Street, tax parcel no. 242.014-1-15.1 (the “S. Madison Street 
Parcel”) and more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Land"), 
pursuant to a First Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 
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2022 (the “Lease Agreement”), the term of which Lease Agreement is scheduled to 
expire on June 30, 2026; and

WHEREAS, RCBRC and Rome Industrial Development Corporation (“RIDC”) 
entered into a project development agreement (the “PDA”), which PDA provides, among 
other things, that RIDC is to act as the “lead developer” of a project (the 
“Redevelopment Project” or the “Project”) to develop the Land for use by manufacturing 
and/or other industrial or commercial end-users (each, individually, as “End-User” and, 
collectively, the “End Users”); and

WHEREAS, RCBRC has submitted a letter to the Agency indicating its intention 
to sell the S. Madison Street Parcel (the “Released Land”); and

WHEREAS, inasmuch as the Released Land is vacant land zoned for residential 
use, RCBRC has indicated the Released Land is not necessary or useful to the 
Redevelopment Project; and 

WHEREAS, RCBRC is now requesting the Agency authorize the release of the 
Released Land from the Lease Agreement for further conveyance; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows:

Section 1.  The Agency hereby determines the Released Land is not necessary 
or useful to the Redevelopment Project and consents to the release of the Released 
Land from the Lease Agreement. 

Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to:  
(i) release the Released Land from the Lease Agreement, (ii) execute, deliver and 
perform a Partial Release of Lease Agreement, (iii) convey the Released Land to 
RCBRC (or to a party that RCBRC directs) pursuant to a Bargain and Sale Deed, and 
(iv) execute, deliver and perform the Bargain and Sale Deed.

Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to release the Released Land and 
to do all things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts 
heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such acquisition are hereby approved, 
ratified and confirmed.

Section 4.  The form and substance of the Partial Release of Lease Agreement 
and the Bargain and Sale Deed (each in substantially the forms customary to the 
Agency and subject to counsel review) are hereby approved.

Section 5.
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(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the Agency 
are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Partial 
Release of Lease Agreement and the Bargain and Sale Deed, all in substantially the 
forms thereof presented to this meeting with such changes, variations, omissions and 
insertions as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the Agency 
shall approve, and such other related documents as may be, in the judgment of the 
Chairman and Agency Counsel, necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions 
contemplated by this resolution (hereinafter collectively called the “Closing 
Documents”).  The execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, or any member 
of the Agency shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or member of the Agency are 
further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency.

Section 6.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required or provided for by the provisions of the Closing Documents, and to 
execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, pay all 
such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be 
necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and 
proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the 
Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the Closing Documents 
binding upon the Agency.

Section 7.   This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the 
Agency, including the resolutions contained therein, held on July 25, 2025 with the 
original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the 
proceedings of the Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of 
said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

That the Partial Release of Lease Agreement and the Bargain and Sale Deed 
contained in this transcript of proceedings are each in substantially the form presented 
to the Agency and/or approved by said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open 
Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the 
time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Sections, (iii) 
the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present 
throughout.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of this _____, 2025.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:___________________________________
     Shawna M. Papale, Secretary
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